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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

JcfTrcyA Meyers 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Kfltja S. Fox
Director

June 12. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division For Behavioral Health, to
amend an existing sole source agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc., (Vendor #155358), 45 High Street,
Nashua, NH 03060, to provide supported housing services by increasing the price limitation by
$1,383,937from $18,963,173 to $20,347,110 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2019
to September 30, 2019, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% General Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on October 29,
2014 (Item #16), and subsequently amended on June 10, 2015 (Item #7), April 19, 2017 (Item #148),
and January 14, 2019 with an Agreement to Terminate Contract Amendment as signed by the
Department and the Contractor.

Furids are available in the accounts included in the attached fiscal details for State Fiscal Year

2019, and are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020, with authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because there are no renewal options available in the current
contract. Further, the existing program is being redesigned and this amendment will extend the services
for ninety (90) days to ensure a successful transition to the State's ten (10) community mental health
centers, who will be administering the program for their regions beginning on October 1, 2019.
Administration of the Housing Bridge Subsidy program includes the provision of housing support services
and subsidies for individuals with severe mental illness who are at risk of becoming homeless. Services
will be provided in accordance with NH Administrative Rule He-M 406, Housing Bridge Subsidy program.

Approximately 400 individuals will be served from July 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019.

The vendor will work with eligible individuals with severe mental illness who are at risk of being
homeless to provide them with rental subsidies and supports. Priority will be given to those ready for
discharge from New Hampshire Hospital and are in need of stable housing.

The services supported by this amendment are a central component of the Community Mental
Health Agreement (Amanda D Settlement), which requires the State to develop and implement measures
to meet individuals' needs that support their ability to live in their communities in integrated settings.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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The program serves as a bridge to federal Section 8 housing, filling the gap between when
someone is approved for Section 8 to when they receive a voucher. Participants in the program are
provided subsidies and contribute up to thirty (30) percent of their household Income toward rent. The
subsidy is $689 per month with some ability to increase the amount based on housing costs. The program
also provides housing support services and case management services for individuals who otherwise do
not have case management.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of Harbor Homes and the delivery of services
required under this agreement using the following performance measures:

•  Maintaining and ensuring timely Housing Bridge voucher payments to all landlords.

•  Provide housing support services for all individuals in order to secure safe and affordable
housing in the individual's community of choice and to ensure they maintain safe, stable
housing.

•  Ensure individuals remain in good standing on the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher
waitlist.

•  Assist individuals to identify and transition out of the Housing Bridge Subsidy program into
other integrated, permanent housing options.

•  Conduct annual housing inspections and income verification reviews.

•  Develop annual housing support plans and coordinate with treatment providers,
community organizations, and case managers to ensure individuals have access to
needed health and social supports.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the services provided to
over 400 individuals with severe mental illness may lose their rental housing and supports and the State
will be at risk of not fulfilling the requirements of the Community Mental Health Agreement.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General

R^pectfully submitted,

(efftey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Fiscal Details

05-95-92-920010'59450000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,

HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class Title Class Account
Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2015
Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $2,214,033 $0 $2,214,033

2016
Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731 $1,923,160 $0 $1,923,160

2017
Contracts for Program
•Services

102-500731 $1,923,160 $0 $1,923,160

Subtotal: $6,060,353 $0 $6,060,353

05-95-92-920010-59450000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class Title Class Account Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2015 Contracts for Operational
Services

103-502664
$0 $0 $0.00

2016 Contracts for Operational
Services

103-502664
$1,689,500 $0 $1,689,500

2017 Contracts for Operational
Services

103-502664
$2,289,000 $0 $2,289,000

Subtotal: $3,978,500 $0 $3,978,500

05-95-49-491510-2989 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS:
DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class Title Class Account Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2017 Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731
$500,000 $0 $500,000

Subtotal: $500,000 $0 $500,000

05-95-92-922010-4117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHSiBEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM
SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class Title Class Account Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

2018 Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731
$4,212,160 $0 K212.160

2019 Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731
$4,212,160 $398,437 K610i597

2020 Contracts for Program
Services

102-500731
$0 $985,500 $985,500

/
Subtotal: $8,424,320 $1,383,937 $9,808,257

Grand Total: $18,963,173 $1,383,937 $20,347,110

Fiscal Details

Housing Bridge Amendment
Page 1 of 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4 to the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

This 4^ Amendment to the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Harbor Homes, Inc. (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 45 High Street, Nashua, NH, 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 29, 2014 (Item #16), and as amended on June 10, 2015 (Item #7). April 19, 2017 (Item 148),
and amended on January 14, 2019 with an Agreement to Terminate Contract Amendment as signed by
the Department and the Contractor, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2019.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$20,347,110.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #4, Scope
of Services.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment to add:

3.1 Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual
expenditures in accordance with the approved line item expenses in Exhibit B-6, Budget
and Exhibit B-7.

7. Add Exhibit 8-6, Budget.

8. Add Budget B-7, Budget.

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendment #4
15-DHHS-DCBCS.BBH-02-A04 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date ^ ' Name: Katja Fox
Title: Director

Date

Harbor Homes, Inc.

U
Nam^

Port * cet)

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of jjL^t^fe—Countv of on - . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity Indicated above.

Signature of Notafy-Public orQi^ce of the Pea^

C
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: WILUAM C. MARTIN
Justice of the Peace - No^ampshlw
My Commission Expires November 4,2020

Harbor Homes, Inc.

15-DHHS-DCBCS-BBH-02-A04

Amendment #4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^|/ -^ In Ojl. a.
Date Name:

Title: /Vjjo

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Counci) of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Harbor Homes, Inc. Amendment #4
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Now Hampshir© Dopartni©nt of H©alth and Human S©rvlc©s
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purpose of this Contract, any reference to days shall be a reference to business
days.

1 2. The Contractor shall provide services to individuals and families who meet the criteria
for the Housing Bridge Subsidy, statewide.

1.3. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
thev will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall facilitate enrollment for individuals eligible for Housing Bridge
Subsidy Program (HBSP) services. The Contractor shall.
2.1.1. Contact the referring agent to schedule a face-to-face meeting with the

consumer and the consumer's support team that may include, but not be
limited to, the consumer's guardian or other involved family member, as
appropriate: the referring agent; a representative from the Bureau of
Behavioral Health (BBH); and an appropriate mental health center
representative.

2.1.2. Work with the consumer's support team, listed in Section 2.1.1, to:
2.1.2.1. Assess consumer's immediate temporary housing needs.

2.1.2.2. Create an individualized housing plan within five (5) business days
from the date the initial referral for services is received. Housing
plans shall include, but not be limited to. supportive services;
access to behavioral health care, as needed; access to psychiatric
health care, as appropriate; and access to primary health care, as
appropriate.

2.1.3. Ensure successful acquisition of consumer housing services within fourteen
(14) days of receiving the initial referral. The Contractor shall:
2.1.3.1. Assess consumer housing preferences and housing history.

2.1.3.2. Assist consumers with identifying available housing units in
consumers' communities of choice.

2.1.3.3. Assist consumers with obtaining, completing and submitting
housing applications.

2.1.3.4. Assist consumers with attending housing provider meetings, as
appropriate, which includes, but is not limited to, performing
housing unit inspections; and assisting consumers with identifying
initial rental needs and resources.

2 1 3.5. Work with the consumer and the consumer's support teamidentified in Section 2.1.1. to facilitate paperwork needed to verify

income and program eligibility, which includes but is not limjted to:

Harbor Homes, Inc. A-Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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2.1.3.5.1. Credit reports.

2.1.3.5.2. Landlord references.

2.1.3.5.3. Criminal background checks.

2.1.3.5.4. Income.

2.1.3.5.5. Asset documentation.

2 2 The Contractor shall provide housing support by assisting e'ig'ble consu^ with
securing safe and affordable housing in the consumers community of choice.
Contractor shall:

2.2.1. Assist consumers with identifying initial rentai needs and resources, such as
security deposits, utilities and furniture.

2.2.2. Ensure selected housing meets the U.S. Housing and Urban Development
(HUD). Section 8 requirements.

2 2 3. Use HUD's habitability standards form to complete housing inspections.
2 24 Assist consumers with applying for and obtaining benefits for whic^i the

consumer may be eligible, including but not limited to. security and utility
deposit assistance, food stamps, SSI/SSDI and Section 8 housing
assistance.

2 2.5. Remain in close communication with the consumer for the first ninety (90)days of the consumer obtaining housing. The Contractor shall:

2.2.5.1. Revise housing and support services plan, if necessary.
2 2 5 2 Identify resources within the community that can assist

consumers. Including but not limited to, peer support agencies;
faith-based groups; transportation services; primary care services;
homemaker/personal care services; legal aid; and meals-on-
wheels.

2 2 5 3 Identify consumers' needs through treatment team meetings, self-
observations; and feedback from landlords and the local mental
health center case managers.

2 2.6.
thVN H H FA^'on "ariliOihjuaJEba^OMlaO^^^

.remains in .good'

ikandih^OhcMysing^^^

2.3. The Contractor shall administer HBSP services, which includes, but is not limited to:
2.3.1. Finding housing for current consumers, as described in Section 2.2.
2 3 2 The Contradbr sfyairfeview .thejndiyiduaTsJncqm^^ assets on an annual

h'a's'been fnade aware of. or

■thejhdiyiiull^hgljepbje^^^
2.3.3. Completing annual inspections of consumers' apartments.
2.3.4. Being the point of contact for landlords.
2.3.5. Ensuring timely rental payments to landlords.

Harbor Homes. Inc. Exhibit A-Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
15-DHHS-DCBCS-BBH-02-A04 Page 2 of 6 OateAj^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A Amendment #4

2 4 The ContractoC^alUenJum-Saclem^^^^ eta's
■  sup^j^^^tK^inimu TheContractor shall

ensure-'

2.4.1. All staffing and volunteers undergo NH Criminal background checks.
2 4 2. All staffing and volunteer names are submitted to the Bureau of Adult and

Elderly Services for review against the State Consumer Protective Service
Registry.

2 5 The Contractor shall ensure all complaints regarding the HBSP services are
investigated by the Complaint Investigator within fifteen (15) days of receiving the
complaint. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.5.1. All parties relevant to the complaint are interviewed by the Complaint
Investigator.

2.5.2. A determination is made by the Complaint Investigator as to whether the
complaint is founded or unfounded.

2.5.3. The complainant is notified, in writing, of the finding.
2.5.4. All identities of any complainants are kept confidential.
2.5.5. Complainants are aware of the Contractor's process to request an appeal of

findings.

3. Reporling Requirement

3 1 The Contractor shall submit annual performance reports (APR) to the Department as
indicated below. The APR must be in narrative form summarizing the results Project
activities and shoNving in particular how project activities were performed for the

Federal

Fiscal Year

Dates Included

in Report
Due Date

2015 10/1/14-9/30/15 10/15/15

2016 10/1/15-9/30/16 10/17/16

2017 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/15/17

2018 10/1/17-9/30/18 10/15/18

2019 10/1/18-9/30/19 10/15/19

3.2. The Contractor shall submit monthly progress reports to the Department, as indicated
below. Quarterly reports shall include, but not be limited to.

3.2.1. The number of participating consumers' assisted.
3.2.2. The number of consumers who exited the project.

3.2.3. The number of consumers who attained stable housing.
3.2.4. Demographic consumer information.

3.2.5. Barriers experienced by the program

Contractor Initials

Date

Exhibit A-Amendment #4

Page 3 of 6 mm
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A Amendment #4

3.2.6. Solutions to avoiding barriers identified.

State Fiscal Year Dates Included in Report Due Date

2015 10/1/14-12/31/14 1/4/15

2015 1/1/15-3/31/15 4/3/15

2015 4/1/15-6/30/15 7/3/15

2016 7/1/15-9/30/15 10/5/15

2016 10/1/15-12/31/15 1/6/16

2016 1/1/16-3/31/16 4/5/16

2016 4/1/16-6/30/16 6/30/16

2017 7/1/16-9/30/16 10/5/16

2017 10/1/16-12/31/16 1/6/17

2017 1/1/17-3/31/17 4/5/17

2017 4/1/17-6/30/17 6/30/17

2018 7/1/17-9/30/17 10/5/17

2018 10/1/17-12/31/17 1/6/18

2018 1/1/18-3/31/18 4/5/18

2018 4/1/18-6/30/18 6/30/18

2019 7/1/18-9/30/18 10/5/18

2019 10/1/18- 12/31/18 1/6/18

2019 1/1/19-3/31/19 4/5/19

2019 4/1/19-6/30/19 6/30/19

2020 7/1/19-9/30/19 10/5/19

3.3.

3.4.

The Comraclor shairsabfnltlitiolhthJy/prMcPs^^^ later than three (3) business
days ̂neafencia^orf-^^^^^^^
-thelb"ala;nceWTyps„ritTiaining'fo

The Contractor shall provide monthly reports, quarterly reports and APRs that are
based on Section 4, Requirements of Delivery of Services.

4. Requirements of Delivery of Services

4.1. The Contractor shall provide HBSP services to a minimum of four hundred (400)
consumefsycufriehtly-ih^^^^

The Contractor shall ensure:

4.2.1. Ninety (90) percent of consumers secure housing in their community of
choice.

4.2.

Harbor Homes. Inc.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A Amendment #4

m

4.2.2. Ninety (90) percent of consumers maintain housing for a minimum of 18
months.

4.2.3. Ninety (90) percent of consumers decrease their hospital utilization to zero
over an 18 month period.

4 2 4 Ninety (90) percent of consumers increase the number of days within the
community over 18 months to at least ninety five (95) percent of the days in
the 18 month period.

4.2.5. One hundred (100) percent of consumers are referred to and receive ongoing
community mental health services.

5. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

5 1 In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the Contractor
agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement
and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. Program-level Profit and Loss Statement
shall include all revenue sources and all related expenditures. The Profit and Loss
Statement shall include a budget column allowing for budget to actual analysis.
Statements shall be submitted within thirty (30) calendar days after each month end.
The Contractor will be evaluated on the following:

5.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

5.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be covered
by the unrestricted cash on hand.

5 1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments
divided by ' total operating expenditures, less
depredation/amortization and in-kind plus principal payments on
debt divided by days in the reporting period. The short-term
investments as used above must mature within three (3) months
and should not indude common stock.

5 1 1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough cash
and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a minimum of thirty
(30);calendar days with;op variance allowed.

5.1.2. Current Ratio:

5.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets
available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

■  5.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current liabilities.
5 12 3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a minimum

(ciirientxatiblgfllTS;::®

5.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

5.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to cover the
cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

5.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt service.
5.1.3.3. Formula: Net income plus Depreciation/Amortization Expense

plus Interest Expense divided by year to date debt service
(prindpal and interest) over the next twelve (12) months.

Pvhihli A'Am^ndment MA Contrdctor InitislsHarbor Homes, inc. txniDii A-Amenamemiw
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A Amendment #4

5.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements
identifying current portion of long-term debt payments (principal
and interest).

5 1.3.5. ;f?erforrpance;,Standaxd_: .XK6 Contractor .shall maintain a minimum
■sWnyardif T;2:r:wit

5.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets;
5.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability to

cover its liabiities.

5.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total assets.
5.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided by

total assets.

5.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial Statements.
:5;.1T4"5^ if3effprmaQCgStanlMC:IXfr6lQ®^^-P^^^^

xatio^fJLSO-j^with^C
5.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

5.2.1. The ■standardTjeg®ind'i'Qsys'^^ Hand and"the standard regarding
.Cu rrent;RaJloTbr.:^^^

5.2.2. Jhree::(3):qLniQre:idf'an^^ ofFlscal Integrity standards for
.threC(3)Tc'0nse^^

5.2.3. The' Depa^rtmeht'ma.y.lreguire'thatT^^^^ rheet v/ith Department staff
to exfjraiiTtheMisMsThanh^^^^ the.standards.

5.2.4. The Department imayi require the Contractor to submit a comprehensiye
corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days of notification that 5.2.1
and/or 5.2.2 have not been met.

5 2 4 1 The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at leastevery thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is achieved.
5.2.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to assure

continued access to services as requested by the Department.
The Contractor shall provide requested information in a timeframe
agreed upon by both parties.

5 3 The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within twenty-four
(24) hours of when any k'eyrCpritractbrVstaff learn of any actual or likely litigation,
investigation, complainJ,:Jaim,;p/Jrans^dip:n |hpirnaxrea^^^
have a iTiatarialT^hanciallmpacfW rtiaterially im'pact or impair the ability of the
■Cdntrador to pe?form;under'.this:Agreement,with the Department.

5 4 The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement and all
other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of accounting and indude
the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures whether or not generated by or
resulting from funds provided pursuant to this Agreement. These reports are due
within thirty (30) caiendar days after the end of each month.

Hart>or Homes, inc. Exhibll A-AmendmenI #4 Conlraclor Inllials
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State
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CERTIFICATE

I. Williom M. Gardner, Sccrciary of Suite of the Suite of New Hampshire, do hereby cenify that HARBOR HOMES, INC. is

0 New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to ironsact business in New Hampshire on Pebmory IS, 1980.1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

ofTice is concerned.

Business ID: 62778

Ccriificatc Number: 0004097603

SI op

M
Ba.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand arid cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I4ih day of May A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate
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Filing History

Business Name

HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Business ID

62778

© Back to Home (/online)

Filing# Filing Date Effective Date

/

Filing Type Annual Report Year

0003185107 10/30/2015 10/30/2015 Annual Report 2015

0000649754 11/15/2010 11/15/2010 Annual Report 2010

0000649753 10/08/2010 10/08/2010 Reminder Letter N/A

0000649752 11/30/2006 11/30/2006 Change of Business Address N/A
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1. X -iTeaotrp.r , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the ej^fcted Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of /44yrAy • .
(Agency Namey

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the.
(Title of Contract Signatory)

Is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The f^oing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of
the // day of Q U/)f 20/f.

(Date Con^ct Signed)

4. PeJer/^eJh.hpr is the duly elected E.(^
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

(Signatur^ the"|l^ed Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

i / 1The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this // day ofJu^ 20

By
^^^,(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

^(NGTAR>^SEA:L):r

"cC / WILUAM C. MARHN
-Cifjjmlssior, ExSirei J"Btloeofthe^- NewHampW^

.T ̂  r^ r My CujiauiMlun tuplres November 4,2020



yACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (IttUOO/yYYY)

11/30/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc.
11 Concord Street

Nashua NH 03064

NAME*^^ Kimberlv Gutekunst
P*No. Erti: 603-882-2766 no):
aI^fss' kautekunstl&eatonberube.com

INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICt

INSURER A: Hsnover Insurance

INSURED HARHO

Harbor Homes. Inc
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03062

INSURER B: Philadelphia Insurance Companies

INSURER c: Eastem Alliance Insurance Group

INSURER D: Selective Insurance Group

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 1724279025 REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
7550!
IN3D

TDBRT
WVD

TYPE OF INSURANCE POUCY NUMBER
POUCY EPF
tMM/DOhYYY^

POLICY EXP
mun>orrm\ UMITS

INSR

IIB.
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LtABiLUY

CLAJMS-MAOE OCCUR

Abus«

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I I [x]lOC
OTHER:

S2288207 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO REMTED
PREMISES <Ea occurrencal

MEO EXP (Any Ofw p«r«on)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

C0M6INE0 SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accidpnU

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$20,000

$1,000,000

$ 3,000,000

$ 3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

ANY AUTO

306871 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 $1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Par parson)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS"
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

-eOOlLY.INJURY.(Par acddanl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer Bccidenn

UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LlAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

306873 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000

AGGREGATE $10,000,000

DED RETENTION $

OTH
ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBEREXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
l( ysi. dascrtba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

010000111752 11/26/2018 11/26/2019

Y/N

□

PER
STATUTE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1.000,000
Prolastlonal UabUiiy
Matugamani Liability
Crima

L1VA966006
PHSO12S8460
S2288207

7/1/2018
7/1/2018
7/1/2018

7/1/2019
7/1/2019
7/1/2019

Prolatslorul "Gap*
O&O
Employaa Dislwrwtty

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$510,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additiotisl Rtmarlci Schadula, may ba attachad If mora apaca la raquirad)
Additional Named Insureds:
Harl>or Homes. Inc. - FID# 020351932
HartTor Homes II. Inc.
Harbor Homes III, Inc.
Healthy at Homes, Inc. -FID# 043364080
Mitford Reoional Counseling Service, Inc. -FID# 222512360
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force -FID# 020447280
Welcoming Light, inc. -FID# 020481648
See Attached...

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

DHHS, state of NH
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
(E) 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO

LOC #;

/XCORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1

AGENCY

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency. Inc.
NAMED INSUREO

Harbor Homes. Inc
77 Northeastem Boulevard

Nashua NH 03062POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAICCODE

EFFECTIVE DATE;

ADDITiONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
HH Ownership, Inc.
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall -FID# 222558859
Boulder Point. LLC - Map 213/Lol 5.3. Boulder Point Drive. Plymouth, NH 03264

ACORD 101 (2008/01) 02008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(WithJndependent.Auditors' Report Thereon)



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT 1

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4

Consolidated Statement of Activities 5

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses 6

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flo\ws 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 8

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position 26

Consolidating Statement of Activities 27



MelansonHeath
ACCOUNTANTS • AUDITORS

102 Perimeter Road

Nashua, NH 03063

{603)882-1111
melansonheath.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Additional Offices:

Andover. MA

Greenfield, MA

To the Board of Directors of Manchester, nh

Harbor Homes, inc. Ellsworth, me

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Harbor
Homes, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Healthy
at Home, Inc., whose statements reflect total assets constituting 1% of consolidated
total assets at June 30, 2018, and total revenues constituting 5% of consolidated
total revenues for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other
auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for Healthy at Home, Inc., is based solely on the
report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the
consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Harbor Homes, Inc. as of June 30, 2018, and the
changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Harbor Homes, Inc.'s fiscal year 2017 financial state
ments, including the fiscal year 2017 financial statements of the entities included in
these consolidated financial statements (except for Healthy at Home, Inc. which was
audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
audited financial statements), and we expressed unmodified audit opinions on those
audited financial statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which
it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The Consolidating Statement of Financial Position and the
Consolidating Statement of Activities are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing



and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting-and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing, standards,
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated December 20, 2018 on our consideration of Harbor Homes. Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Harbor Homes, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Harbor Homes Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 20, 2018



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

June 30. 2018

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30,2017)

ASSETS

Current Assets;

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Patient receivables, net

Promises to give
Investments

Inventory
Other assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Property and equipment, net
Deferred compensation pian assets

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Lines of credit

Current portion of capital leases payable
Current portion of mortgages payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
^curity deposits
Deferred compensation plan liabilities
Mortgages payable, tax credits
Mortgages payable, net of current portion
Mortgages payable, deferred

Total Long>Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Unrestricted Net Assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

2018

480,242 $

1.096,861

2,060,419

1,301,048

192,731

123,078

71.155

2017

754.353

614,739

2.784,965

1.079.605

8,000

493.543

67.277

101.770

5.325,334 5,904,252

30.968,341 30,353,542

16,800 .

30.985.141 30.353.542

>  36.310.475 $ 36,257.794

1.285,423 S 1.094,935

- 18,304

496,608 450,736

865,390 1,289,475

1.742.169 1,464,378

341.071 33,017

12.077 5.582

4,742.738 4.356,427

68.918 67,636

16,800 -

158.237 79.280

15,783.030 16,245,171

8,571.209 7.618.496

24.598.194 24.010.583

29,340.932 28,367,010

6.851.238 7,561,606

118.305 329.178

6.969.543 7.890.784

36.310.475 $ 36,257,794

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted 2018 2017

Net Assets Net Assets Total Total

Public Support and Revenue;
Public Support:

State and local grants $  11,380,392 $ $  11,380,392 $ 7,395,645
Federal grants 7,496,411 80,300 7,576,711 8,074,192

Contributions 73,663 613,018 686,681 1,044,621

Other grants 217,794 451,324 669,118 217,600

Fundraising events, net 20,857 28,097 48,954 33,283

Net assets released from restriction 1,383.612 (1,383.612) . •

Total Public Support 20,572,729 (210,873) 20,361,856 16,765,341

Revenue:

Patient services revenues (other), net 5,686,860 - 5,686,860 5,512,169

Patient services revenues (FQHC), net' 3,664,163 - 3,664,163 2,430,161

Department of Housing and
Urban Development programs 3,429,882 - 3,429,882 3,420,327

Veterans Administration programs 2,213,701 - 2,213,701 2,160,799

Contracted services 1,039,097 - 1,039,097 1,044,751

Rent and service charges, net 867,249 - 867,249 825,519

Outside rent 555,551 . 555,551 432,905

Fees for services 344,456 - 344,456 318,808

Miscellaneous 177,075 - 177,075 27,768

Investment income (loss) 40.632 . 40.632 26.437

Total Revenue 18,018.666 - 18.018.666 16,199.644

Total Public Support and Revenue 38,591,395 (210,873) 38,380,522 32,964,985

Expenses:

Program 33,423,301 - 33,423,301 27,777,021

Administration 3,754,447 - 3.754,447 3,176,798

Fundraising 667,731 - 667,731 670,846

Total Expenses 37.845,479 . 37.845.479 31.624,665

Change in net assets before depredation 745,916 (210,873) 535,043 1,340,320

Depredation (1,456.284) n.456.284) f1.354.446)

Change in net assets (710,368) (210,873) (921,241) (14,126)

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 7,561.606 329.178 7,890.784 7.904.910

Net Assets, End of Year $  6,851,238 $  118.305 $  6,969,543 $ 7.890.784

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

{Wth Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30. 2017)

2018 2017

Proa ram Administration Fundraisina Total Total

Expenses:

Salaries and \vages $  14,520,100 $  2,272,110 $  435,102 $  17,227,312 S 14,123.846

Client rentai assistance 6,475,207 - - 6,475,207 5,793,879

Employee benefits 1,822,234 291,863 43,725 2,157,822 1,516,722

Contracted services 1,930,543 67,920 5,586 2,004,049 2,134,126

Occupancy 1,753,278 176,775 4,022 1,934,075 1,733,130

Payroll taxes 1,157,347 171,856 34,646 1,363,849 1,059,527

Client insurance assistance 923,931 - 923,931 459,578

Operational supplies 799,811 6,456 219 806,486 354,235

Grants and donations 518,300 39,641 71,553 629,494 752,534

Interest expense 804,073 126,025 2,768 932.866 739,534

Office expenses 472,217 73,943 38,674 584.834 349,044

Other client assistance 460,267 50 - 460,317 123,926

Retirement contributions 324,433 122,669 6,605 453,707 323,890

Information technology 253,023 47,632 3,505 304,160 602,080

Client food and nutrition services 243,474 519 - 243,993 217,641

Travel 218,521 16,835 1,194 236,550 221,188

Insurance 152,556 10,724 226 163,508 251,962

Professional fees 119,833 51,595 6,426 177,854 163,910

Miscellaneous 137,963 66,459 1,393 205,815 127,572

Legal fees 29,722 81,685 226 111,633 122,421

Accounting fees 1,040 105,769 - 106,809 115,000

Conferences, conventions, and meetings 86,759 12,227 1,181 100,167 151,668

Advertising and promotion 83,847 4,576 9,979 98,402 24,842

Client counseling and support services 60,218 367 - 60,585 106,044

Staff expenses 33,117 4,518 699 38,334 10,830

Membership dues 20,772 2,233 - 23,005 30,190

Client medical assistance 20,715 . . 20,715 15,346

Total Expenses 33,423,301 3,754,447 667.731 37,845,479 31,624,665

Depreciation 1,337,587 114,639 4,058 1,456,284 1,354,446

Total Functional Expenses $  34,760,888 S  3,869,086 $  671,789 S  39.301,763 $ 32,979,111

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30. 2017)

2018 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $  (921.241) $  (14.126)
Adjustments to reconcile cf^ange in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,456,284 1,354,446

(Increase) Deaease In:
Accounts receivable 724,546 (1,304,307)

Patient receivables (221.443) (242,996)
Promises to give 8,000 (8,000)
Inventory (55,801) (67,277)
Other assets 30,615 76,667

Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts payable (424,085) 792,902

Accrued expenses 277,791 381,422

Deferred revenue 308,054 5,739

. Other liabilities 6,495 . (257.701)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,189,215 716.769

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
*

Security deposits 1,282 25,993

Purchase of fixed assets (2,071,083) (640,938)
Sale of investments 300.812 (340,897)

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (1.768,989) (955,842)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Borrowings from lines of credit, net 190,488 607,868

Payments on capital leases (18,304) (43,127)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,007,713 200,000

Payments on long-term borrowings (471,269) (422,991)
Proceeds from tax aedits 100,000 -

Payments on tax aedits (21.043) (21.043)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 787,585 520.707

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 207,811 281,634

Cash. Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 1.369.092 1.087,458

Cash. Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year $  1.576.903 S  1.369.092

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid

Non-cash financing activities

932,866 $  660.327

$  4,950,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization:

The consolidated financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. include the

following related entities. All inter-entity transactions have been eliminated.
Unless otherwise noted, these consolidated entities are hereinafter referred to
as the "Organization".

Harbor Homes, Inc. - Creates and provides quality residential and
supportive services for persons (and their families) challenged by mental
illness and/or homelessness in the State of New Hampshire. Programs
include mainstream housing, permanent housing, transitional housing, and
emergency shelter, as well as comprehensive support services that
include behavioral healthcare, peer support programs, job training, a paid
employment program, and social and. educational activities. Harbor
Homes, Inc. also runs a health care clinic that is a Federally Qualified
Health Center (FQHC) offering primary medical services to the homeless
and/or low-income individuals.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC - A single-member. New Hampshire
Limited Liability Company, created to develop and manage a new
permanent supportive housing facility in Plymouth, New Hampshire
(Boulder Point, LLC) for homeless veterans. Harbor Homes, Inc. is the
sole member and the manager of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC.

Boulder Point, LLC - A New Hampshire Limited Liability Company,
whose purpose is to acquire, own, develop, construct and/or rehabilitate,
manage, and operate a new veterans housing project in Plymouth, New
Hampshire. Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a 0.01% investor member
and the manager member.

Harbor Homes II, Inc., Harbor Homes III, Inc., and HH Ownership, Inc.
- Provides residential services to the chronically mentally ill.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - Provides recovery support
services which are evidence-based, gender-specific, and culturally
competent, including residential, transitional housing, outpatient, intensive
outpatient, family-based substance abuse services, pregnant and
parenting women and children, and offender re-entry services initiative.

Healthy at Home, Inc. - Provides home healthcare services to residents
of Nashua and surrounding communities and strives to enhance the lives
of people with illness or injury through a cooperative relationship with the
community, professional medical service providers, and associations that

8



serve people in need of healthcare. Homecare, rehabilitative, and private-
duty nursing services are provided in the individual's home setting.

Welcoming Light, Inc. - Provides residential services to the elderly and
disabled and offers training for substance abuse and mental health issues
and training for nonprofit agencies in New Hampshire.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/Aids Task Force, Inc. - Provides
educational case management, mental health and alternative therapy
assistance, housing assistance, food and nutritional guidance, substance
abuse counseling, and other related support services to people in the
Southern New Hampshire region infected with the HIV/Aids virus.

Milford Regional Counseling, Inc. - Operates a regional counseling
center serving the Greater Souhegan Valley area and provides
counseling, guidance, and consultation to individuals, groups, children,
adults, and families.

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for
long-term purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is
based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a
review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when
deemed uncollectable.



Patient Receivables, Net - - ..

Patient receivables relate to health care services provided by the
Organization's Federally Qualified Health Care Center. Additions to the
allowance for doubtful accounts result from the provision for bad debts.
Accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for doubt

ful accounts. The amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based

upon management's assessment of historical and expected net collections,
business and economic conditions, trends in Medicare and Medicaid health
care coverage, and other indicators.

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have
third-party coverage, which includes patients with deductible and copayment
balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill, the
Organization analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance
for doubtful collections and a provision for doubtful collections, if necessary.
For receivables associated with self-pay patients, the Organization records a
significant provision for doubtful collections in the period of service on the
basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients are unable to
pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The
difference between the billed rates and the amounts actually collected after all
reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the
allowance for doubtful collections.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised primarily of pharmacy items, and is stated at the lower
of cost or net realizable value determined by the first-in, first-out method.

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair

values in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains
and losses are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying
Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if
purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets ranging from 3 to 40 years, or in the case of capitalized leased
assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful life of the asset or
the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and
related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss is included in
the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs
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that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the-respectlve-assets~are
expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that thexarrying value-of.an asset
may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to
result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an
impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair
value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment in fiscal year
2018.

^ef Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows;

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets available for use in general
operations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor
restrictions that may or will be met by expenditures or actions and/or the
passage of time. Contributions are reported as temporarily restricted
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the
donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the Consolidated Statement of Activities as net assets
released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets whose use is limited by
donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by the passage of time nor
can be fulfilled or otherwise removed. The restrictions stipulate that resources
be maintained permanently, but permit expending of the income generated
in accordance with donor stipulations.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments
under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the

applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures
are incurred, respectively.

Patient Services Revenues, Net

Patient services revenues, net is reported at the estimated net realizable
amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered.
Self-pay revenue is recorded at published charges with charitable allowances

11



deducted to arrive at net self-pay revenue. All other patient services-revenue
is recorded at published charges with contractual allowances deducted to
arrive, at patient services, net. Reimbursement rates are subject to revisions
under the provisions of reimbursement regulations. Adjustments for such
revisions are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Included in. third-party
receivables are the outstanding uncompensated care pool payments.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its
charity care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established
rates. Since the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts deter
mined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are reported as deductions
from revenue.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as
increases in-unrestricted net assets unless use of the contributed-assets is

specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by
the donor to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as
increases in either temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets,
consistent with the nature of the restriction. Unconditional promises with
payments due in future years have an implied restriction to be used in the
year the payment is due, and therefore are reported as temporarily restricted
until the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended to support
activities of the current fiscal year or is received with permanent restrictions.
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they
become unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which they depend are
substantially met.

Gifts-in-Kind Contributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash
or investments. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an
asset at its estimated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of
the asset and its estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization
policy. Donated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses
at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If
the use of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one
year, the contribution is reported as a contribution and an unconditional
promise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the dale of gift and
as expenses when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial
number of volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of
time and services in the Organization's program operations and in its fund-
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raising campaignsr However, the majorlty of the contributed-services-do-not
meet the criteria for recognition in financial statements. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed.services .only-if-(a)_the-
services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services would have
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized-skills.-and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to inde
pendent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform Grant
Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in the
disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or reductions of
future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's manage
ment believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially
affect the financial position of the Organization.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summa
rized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Administration expenses include those costs that are not directly identifiable
with any specific program, but which provide for the overall support and
direction of the Organization.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in
contributions received in future years. Additionally, advertising costs are
expensed as incurred.

Change In Net Assets Before Depreciation

Due to the significance of depreciation expense that is included in the
Organization's change in net assets, the change in net assets before
depreciation has been provided in the Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Income Taxes

The entities included in these consolidated financial statements (with the
exception of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC and Boulder Point, LLC) have
been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from
federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as
organizations described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualify for charitable
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contribution—deductions,-and have been determined not-to—be private
foundations. A Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990),
is-required.to-be-filed withJhe IRS for each entity. ln-addition,.net income that
is derived from business activities that are unrelated to an entity's exempt
purpose is subject to income-tax. In fiscal year 2018, Harbor Homes, Inc. and
Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc. were subject to unrelated business
income tax and filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return
(Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a single-member, New Hampshire Limited
Liability Company, with Harbor Homes, Inc. as its sole member. Harbor
Homes Plymouth, LLC has elected to be treated as a corporation.

Boulder Point, LLC is a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company and has
elected to be treated as a partnership.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates.and assump
tions that affect the reported amourits of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates and those differences could

be material.

Financial instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institu
tions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these
accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is considered to be limited

due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the
outstanding amounts are due from governmental agencies and entities
supportive of the Organization's mission. Investments are monitored regularly
by the Organization. Although the fair values of investments are subject to
fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the Organization believes that its
investment strategies are prudent for the long-term welfare of the
Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most
advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market condi
tions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly
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to the assumptions that market participants would use in priclng^the asset or-
liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unob-
servable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect .the_assumptions-market,
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the reporting.entity. Unobservable inputs
are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assump
tions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as
follows;

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are
not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations,
inputs are developed using the best information available in the
circumstances.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities
that the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example,
unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's financial
statements are:

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment
assets and unconditional contributions receivable.

•  Recurring measurement of investments - Note 4.

•  Recurring measurement of lines of credit - Note 9.

•  Recurring measurement of mortgages payable - Notes 10-12.

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivables,
inventory, other assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, deferred
revenue, and other liabilities, approximate fair value due to the short-term
nature of the items.
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Reclassifications — - ■

Certain accounts in the prior year comparative totals have been.reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year
consolidated financial statements.

3. Restricted Cash:

Restricted cash at June 30, 2018 consists of escrow and reserve accounts
which are held for various purposes, and are comprised of the following:

Construction escrows $ 471,769
Reserve for replacements 547,792 *
Residual receipt deposits 13,062 *
Security deposits 64,038

Total $ 1,096.661

*Required_ by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

4. Investments:

Investments consist of the following at June 30, 2018:

Fair

Value Level 1 Level 3

Equities $ 19,426 $ 19,426 $
Other investments 173,305 - 173,305

Total . $ 192,731 $ 19,426 $ 173,305
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Beginning Balance, July 1, 2017

Additions

Reductions

Transfers into Level3

Ending Balance, June 30,2018

~~Fair Value"

Measurements

-Using-Significant
Unobservable Inputs

Level 3
Other Investments

$  161,946

11,359

$  173,305

Accounts Receivable. Net:

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Grants

Residents

Other

Medicaid

Pledges
Security deposits

Total

$

Receivable

1,497,960

59,701

284,876

246,632

8,000

2,530

Allowance

(39,280)

m

1,497,960

20,421

284,876

246,632

8,000

2,530

$  2,099,699 $ (39,280) $ 2,060,419

Patient Receivables. Net:

Patient receivables, related to the Organization's Federally Qualified Health
Care Center, consists of the following at June 30, 2018:

Medicaid

Medicare

Other

Total

Receivable

811,024

235,566

767,453

Allowance

(58,810)
(85,358)

(368,827)

752,214

150,208

398,626

$  1,814,043 $ (512,995) $ 1,301,048
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7. Property; Equipment; and Depreciation:

A_ summary of the major components of property and equipment as of
June 30, 2018 is presented below:

Land $  4,338,288

Land improvements 36,394

Buildings 27.785,977
Building improvements 7,031,206

Software 840,669

Vehicles 404,192

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 725,786

Dental equipment 150,405

Medical equipment 58,022

Construction in progress 1,292,454

Subtotal 42,663,393

Less: accumulated

depreciation (11.695,052)

Total $  30,968,341

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 totaled $1,456,284.

8. Accrued Expenses:

Accrued expenses at June 30, 2018 include the following:

Mortgage interest $ . 84,503
Payroll and related taxes 827,156
Compensated absences 784,710
Other 45.800

Total $ 1,742,169

9. Lines of Credit:

At June 30, 2018, the Organization had the following lines.of credit available:

Harbor Homes, Inc. - $1,000,000 of credit available from TO Bank, N. A.
due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The Organization is
required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest payments to TO Bank, N.
A. at the bank's base rate plus 1% adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2018, the
credit line had an outstanding balance of $261,746 at an interest rate of
6.00%.
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" Harbor Homes, Inc. - $500,000 line of credlt available from TD Bank—
N. A. due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The
Organization is required, at a minimum, to make, monthly interest-
payments to ID Bank, N. A. at the bank's base rate plus 1% adjusted
daily. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an outstanding balance of
$440,462 at an interest rate of 6.00%.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - $750,000 line of credit
available from Merrimack County Savings Bank, due on demand, and
secured by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a
minimum, to make monthly interest payments at the Wall Street Journal
Prime Rate plus 1.00% (6.00% at June 30, 2018) to Merrimack County
Savings Bank. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an outstanding
balance of $348,779.

Healthy at Home, Inc. - $250,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A.,
due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The interest rate is
the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1% (6.00% at June 30, 2018).
The outstanding balance on the line of credit was $234,436 at June 30,
2018.

Lines of credit are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.

10. Mortgages Payable, Tax Credits:

Mortgages payable, tax credits consist of mortgages payable by Harbor
Homes, Inc. to the Community Development Finance Authority through the
Community Development Investment Program, payable through the sale of
tax credits to donor organizations, maturing in 2020, secured by real property
located at 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH. This amount is amortized over
ten years at zero percent interest. The amount due at June 30, 2018 is
$58,237.

Mortgages payable, tax credits also includes $100,000 of Low Income
Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) to Boulder Point, LLC.

Mortgages payable, tax credits are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as
Level 2.
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11. IVIortqaqes-Pavable:

Mortgages.payable as of June 30, 2018 consisted of the.following:

Principal Payment Payment Interest

Balance Amount Freauencv Rate Maturity ProDertv/Securitv

$ 3,653,055 $  19,635 Monthly 4.00% 09/15/42 615 Amherst Street in Nashua, NH
3,375,000 - Interest only 4.00% 02/28/19 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard in Nashua, NH
1,146,876 7,879 Monthly 6.77% 12/05/33 335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH
1,125,000 - Interest only 6.00% 11/22/18 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard in Nashua. NH

1,118,886 6,193 Monthly 4.57% 12/05/33 335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH
1,041,850 7,768 Monthly 7.05% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH
631,152 5,126 Monthly 6.97% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street in Nashua. NH
602,012 5,324 Monthly 4.38% 08/12/30 45 High Street in Nashua. NH
584,714 3,996 Monthly 4.75% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH
443,434 2,692 Monthly 4.75% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH
374,102 5,276 Monthly 9.25% 12/01/26 /MIds Street in Nashua, NH
348,728 5,387 Monthly 4.75% 03/29/21 14 Maple Street in Nashua, NH
272,543 2,077 Monthly 4.83% 06/29/35 189 Kinsley Street in Nashua, NH
256,339 3,369 Monthly 9.28% 01/01/28 Chestnut Street in Nashua, NH
243,747 1,425 Monthly 4.75% 04/06/42 45 High Street in Nashua, NH
214,679 1,731 Monthly 7.00% 09/28/36 7 Trinity Street in Claremont, NH
192,497 • 3,184 • Monthly 9.25% - 05/01/25 North Main Street in Nashua, NH
154,223 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 04/05/22 Mobile van

150,933 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 03/05/22 615 Amlierst Street in Nashua, NH
109,834 1,144 Monthly 4.64% 11/10/29 24 Mulberry Street in Nashua, NH
98,762 2,385 Monthly 9.25% 08/01/22 3 Wnter Street in Nashua, NH

90,208 779 Monthly 4.32% 04/11/37 4 New Haven Drive, Unit 202 in Nashua. NH

55,000 • Interest only 3.08% 10/31/19 Boulder Point Drive in Plymouth, NH
45,227 299 Monthly 3.89% 10/01/35 59 Factory Street in Nashua. NH
20,058 1,552 Monthly 4.50% 07/13/19 15 Union Street in Milford, NH

s 16,348,859 Subtotal

(69,221) Less debt issuance costs

(496.6081 Less amount due within one year

$ 15.783.030 Mortgages payable, net of current portion

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
long-term debt.

Year

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  496,608
504,104

531,444

543,121

501,920

13,771,662

$  16,348,859

Mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.
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12. Mortgages Payable. Deferred: — ———

The Organization has deferred mortgages outstanding at.June 30, 2018Jotal-
ing $8,571,209. These loans are interest free, and are not required to be
repaid unless the Organization is in default with the terms of the loan
agreements or, for certain loans, if an operating surplus occurs within that
program.

Deferred mortgages payable at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

City of Manchester;
Somerville Street property $ 300,000

Total City of Manchester 300,000

City of Nashua:
Factory Street property 580,000
Spring Street property 491,000
Strawberry Bank condominiums 80,000
High Street fire system 65,000

Total City of Nashua . . . 1,216,000

Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Strawberry Bank condominiums 436,400

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 436,400

Federal Home Loan Bank {FHLB):
Boulder Point property 952,713
Factory Street property 400,000
Somerville Street property 400,000
Spring Street property 398,747
Amherst Street property 385,000

Total FHLB 2,536,460

NHHFA:

Amherst Street property 1,500,000
Factory Street property 1,000,000
Spring Street property 550,000
Charles Street property 32,349
Somerville Street property 1,000,000

Total NHHFA 4,082,349

Total Mortgages Payable, Deferred $ 8.571.209

Deferred mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as
Level 2.
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13. TemporarilvRestricted Net Assets: ~

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following, purposes at.
June 30, 2018:

Purpose Amount

Special events $ 40,224
Housing 20,439
Client services 39,216

Clinic 2,656

Dental 10,000

Miscellaneous 5,770

Total $ 118,305

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by the passage of time.

14. Patient Services Revenue (FQHCk Net:

The Organization recognizes patient services revenue associated with services
provided through its FQHC to patients who have Medicaid, Medicare, third-
party payor. and managed care plans coverage on the basis of contractual
rates for services rendered. For uninsured self-pay patients that do not qualify
for charity care, the Organization recognizes revenue on the basis of its
standard rates for services provided or on the basis of discounted rates if
negotiated or provided by the Organization's policy. Charity care services are
computed using a sliding fee scale based on patient income and family size.
On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the
Organization's uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the
services provided. Thus, the Organization records a provision for bad debts
related to uninsured patients in the period the services are provided.

The Organization accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient
is classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies,
which define charity services as those costs for which no payment is antici
pated. The Organization uses federally established poverty guidelines to
assess the level of discount provided to the patient. The Organization is
required to provide a full discount to patients with annual incomes at or below
100% of the poverty guidelines, but may charge a nominal copay. If the patient is
unable to pay the copay, the amount is written off to charity care. All patients
are charged in accordance with a sliding fee discount program based on house
hold size and household income. No discounts may be provided to patients
with incomes over 200% of federal poverty guidelines.
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Patient services revenue (FQHC), net of provision-for-bad-debts-and
contractual allowances and discounts, consists of the following;

2018 2017

Charitable Net Patient Net Patient

Gross Contractual Care Service Service

Charoes Allowances Allowances Revenue Revenue

Medicaid $ 1,788,985 S  (283,487) $ . $ 1,505,498 $ 1,470,902

Medicare 1,649,191 (624,839) - 1,024,352 284,040

Third-party 1,597,970 (528,963) - 1,069,007 560.456

Sliding fee/free care 443,680 - (440,720) 2.960 18,900

Self-pay 427,971 - (124.171) 303.800 301,645

Subtotal $ 5,907,797 S  (1,437.289) S (564.891) 3,905,617 2,635,943

Provision for bad debts (241.454) (205.782)

Total $ 3,664,163 S 2,430,161

15. Client Rental Assistance:

The Organization has multiple grants requiring the payment of rents pn behalf
of the consumer. Rent expense totaling approximately $6.5 million is comprised
of leases held in the Organization's name and the responsibility of the Organ
ization, leases in consumers' names, or rents paid as client assistance.

16. Plymouth NH Veterans Housing Project:

The Plymouth NH Veterans Housing project is a planned permanent
supportive housing development of twenty-five one-bedroom apartments for
homeless veterans, and five two-bedroom apartments for low-income families
located on Boulder Point Drive in Plymouth, New Hampshire. The New
Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority has awarded Harbor
Homes, Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the project. Harbor Homes, Inc.
is serving as the developer of the $7 million project and will receive a
developer fee, net of expenses in the amount of $472,000. When completed,
the 29,000 square foot apartment building will not only offer affordable,
permanent supportive housing for in-need veterans, but staff from Harbor
Homes, Inc. and White River Junction VA Medical Center will also provide
essential supportive services and case management on-site.

17. Deferred Compensation Plan:

In fiscal year 2018, the Organization offered a 401 (k) retirement plan. Upon
meeting the eligibility criteria, employees can contribute a portion of their
wages to the 401 (k) plan. The Organization matches a percentage of the
employee contribution based on years of service. Total matching
contributions paid by the Organization for the year ended June 30, 2018 were
$454,960.
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The Organization maintains a deferred compensation plan for certain
directors (the "SA Plan"). The deferred compensation liability under the SA
-Plan was $16,800 as of June 30, 2018 and was recorded as a long-term
liability. This liability is offset by a corresponding long-term asset in the same
amount.

18. Concentration of Risk:

The Organization received revenue as follows:

Federal grants $ 30%
State. local, and other agencies 20%
Patient services revenues (other), net 15%
Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 10%
Department of Housing and Urban Development 9%
Department of Veterans Affairs 6%
All other support and revenue 10%

Total $ 100%

19. Contingencies:

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal,
state, and local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations is
subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory
actions unknown or unasserted at this time. Government activity continues to
increase with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible
violations by healthcare providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regula
tions, which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as
well as significant repayments for patient service previously billed. Manage
ment is not aware of any material incidents of noncompliance; however, the
possible future financial effects of this matter on the Organization, if any, are
not presently determinable.

20. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2016-
18, State of Cash Flows (Topic 203): Restricted Cash: The amendments in
this update require that the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows explain
the change during the fiscal year of restricted cash as part of the total of cash
and cash equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents,
and restricted cash reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
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Position to the same such amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 480,242
Restricted Cash 1,096,661

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash
shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows $ 1,576.903

21. Change In Accounting Principle:

Effective July 1, 2017, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2015-11,
Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which
simplifies the subsequent measurement of inventory by replacing the lower of
cost or market test with a lower of cost or net realizable value test. Net

realizable value Is defined as estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and
transportation. Prior to fiscal year 2018, the Organization reported inventory
at the lower of cost or market. This guidance is applied prospectively as
determined by the standard. There is no prior year or current year effect to
the financial statements as a result of this change.

22. Subseguent Events:

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 20, 2018, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

On August 29, 2019, Harbor Homes, Inc. signed a $400,000 short-term note
with a local bank. Interest on the note is required at 2.5% above the bank's
base rate for six months. The note is secured by two properties.

In October of 2018, Harbor Homes, Inc. sold two properties. The proceeds
were used to pay down the short-term note in the amount of $319,000.

Subsequent to year end, and upon completion of the Plymouth NH Veterans
Housing project, additional Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) funding
of approximately $2.6 million will be provided to Boulder Point, LLC.

The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority has
awarded Harbor Homes, Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the Plymouth
NH Veterans Housing project which will be received in fiscal years 2019 and
2020 and will consist of mortgages payable totaling $560,000 to the
Community Development Investment Program.
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** InduMt Hwbet Homo. Inc., HaAw HornM Plymoutfi, LLC, md SetJiW PoK LLC

ASSETS

CtfTM A«a«IS:

CMiiindcaA tqtMlen*
RntdcMdcMti

Accotra (KsivsUa, n«

Ptiient raceM4M. M

Prernimtogh*
Ou* Own rctitM ecgtoisnord
InvcM/nci'U

InutMory
Othernuti

Total Current Aascsa

NencwrM Atsets:

Proptftr and aqutpmenL net
Oue Own related ccgancatiocB
Oelerrad eomperoation plan atieta
Prtpaid land leaie
Total Noneurreit AMet*

Total Aaaets

UABLTTIES ANO NET ASSETS

Cunni UabBttei:

Uneaelcredt

Cuneni pottien e( capdM leaaea payatte
Currert pertlen of mertaagea payable
Aaau«a payatle
Accrued Rpenaea
Due 10 leMed organlubona
Oelerrad revenue

Other fMtlea

Total Currant Uabibea

Lon^Term UabBbea:

" Harbor

Z275

891,720

1.338,150

1.023,94$

145,432

192,731

123,078

53,481

3,768,813

24.214,3n

1.403,059

16,800

285,000

25.919,23S

702,208

281,658

731,227

1.375,281

17,952

621,395

11077

3.741,798

903

28.332

1,379

29.957
5,484

3175

2.508

69,272

553

72,333

200,980

200,980

17,444

1005

1.853

5.781

27.083

1.556

13.258

14.812

311.803

311,803

357

1.079

5,917

315,659

29,752
555,874

5,605,937

266,004

126,006

45,128

214,127

Hetthyat
Home, are.

2n,102

I-
16,924

333,473
1

11581

Welcanang
LJt*t he.

9,572

64,329

952

109,260

115,782

4,576

95,156

151287

13,166

13,244

1320

213,186

121.479

6,536

81988

28,730

151282

Subtotal

480,242

1,096,661

1060,419

1,301,048

147.752

191731

123,078

71.155

31.038,341

1.873,530

16,800

285.000

Eimlnallona

(147.752)

(147,752)

(70,000)
(1,8n,530)

2018

Total

480,242

1,096,661

1060,419

1,301,048

191731

' 123,078

71.155

5,325,334

30,968.341

16,800

2017

TotM

754,353

614,739

1784,965

1,079.605

8,000

493.543

67,277

101,770

5,904,252

30,353,542

12581 334 665 89 524 152 262 33.213.671 (1228.S3CI 30 985141 30 353 547

346,054 8 409.518 8 337.697 8 181.012 8  38 686 757 8  (1378,282) 8  36,310.475 8  36.257.794

21.289

3.626

1741
77,498

27,289

1320

Ouetaraiaiad organiEationB 1.320.106 175,463 . . 27,012 291,480
Securtydeposaa 57,660 4.016 1494 1,317
Deferred campenaabon plan tabtbea 16.800 .

Motigagea payable, tax cradta 158,237 . . .

lAengagea payable, nai o( current perwn 11.420,217 344,145 238,896 . 3,606,761 171,208
Mortgagee payibk, deterred 6169 809 516.400 1 885 000

Tccal Lon^Term UabbM 19 142 831 523 626 241.389 517717 5,518,773 463 787

TotMUaCrtbet 21884,629 561342 268,472 526.070 6254,813 464,154 491,323 107,107

Unrectricied Nai Acaes (OeflcR) 6.666,116 (211,CS9) 4,841 (198.465) 518,413 (118,100) (81,805) 230,590
Temperarty Reairleied Net Asaeta 118.306 .

Total Nat Aaaeta 6 803 420 1211.069) 4 841 1198.455) 518 413 (116.100) 161 805) 230 590

TotMUabBlea and Net Ateeta 8  29.688,049 8 351,273 8 273,313 8 326.615 8 6773,226 8 346,054 8 409,518 8 337,697

. . 18,304
16,254 496.608 496.608 450,736

165 865.390 866.390 1.289,475
7,264 1.741169 1.741169 1.464,378

147.752 (147,752)
626.071 (286.000) 341,071 33,017

11077 . 12077 SSB2

26.683 5.176.490 ,  (431752) 4.741736 4,366,427

59.467 1.873,530 (1,873.530)

1350 68.916 - 66.918 1  67,836
16.800 . 16.600 '

158,237 158.237 1  79,280
1,604 15.783,030 . 16.783.030 1  16.245,171

6571 209 . 8.571.209 '  7.618.496

63 621 26 471 724 11.173.5301 24 698 194 ;  24 010 583

89.304 31,647,214 (2,306.282) 29.340.932 1  28.367,010

91,708 6.921,238 (70.000) 6.851,238 1  7.561,606
. 116,305 . 118 305 329,176

91.708 7039 643 (70 0001 . 6.969.543 7.890 784

1  181.012 8 36,686,757 8  (1376.282) 8  36.310.475 8  36.257,794
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HARBOR HOMES. INC.

C«nsotalha StMnwnl o< AOMM

Fa a» Y«w Ended June 30.2018
(Wth CORvefMNe Toteb to the Yetr Ended Jwe 30,2017)

" Indudet HaMr Hemes, Inc.. HtrOet Homee Plirmoun. LLC, and BoUder PeM. LLC

PuUc StvpM and Revenue:

Putic Stcport

Stale and loeal gcerts
Federal grans
Cenrttutons

Other gnnls
Fundraisino events, net

Total PuCtcS(*pail

Revenue:

Paden services revenue* (odto). net
PaOen services revenues (FOHC). net
Deoaitmen 9( HcuNng and
Urban Developmen oregrarrs

Veterans Adtnlnlstialien pregrana
Conracted services

Ren and service eherges, net
OutskMrm

Fees to servkas
Miscelaneeus

Investmen eicoma (lois)
Management fees, riet

Total Reversie

Total PuCdc Suptnt and Revenue

ExperacE

Program

AdmnstrMen

FunMsing
Total Expenses

Change h net assets belora depreciaiion

DepreoWon

Change in net assets

Net Assets (OeScsL Beglnr*« of Year

Net Assets (OeOolL End ot Year

Greater Nashua Southern Wt MItod Regional '

" Harbor HMber Harbor HH Coundon Heathy Welcoming '  HIV/AJOS Couraelng 2018 1  2017
Horrves Inc. Homes II Inc Homes in Inc Ovneishto he Akahdsm it Home. Inc. Lion he Tesit Force Inr. Servicei Int Suaotsl Elmhettoa JSSA ISQI

I

o.misi 3 3 3 3 3 3 '3 1.547,241 3  3 11.380,392 3  3 11.360,392 3  7,395,645
3,492,617 - 569,171 . 7,578,711 7.576,711 '  8,074,192

2231 3.822 7,173 33,684 17,365 688,681 686,681 1,044,621
- • . 669,118 869,118 217,600
- . 9 758 . 48 954

14,6$8.7»a 3,494,648 3,622 7,173 2160,054 17,365 20,351,856 20.361,858 16,765,341
(

1,903.S90 2020,077 1.763,193 . ■ 5.686,860 5,688,860 5,512169

-
-

3.684,183
•

3,864,163 2430,161

3,058,843 115,280 104,683 21,353 129,743 . 3,429.882 3,429,882 3,420,327
. 2213,701 2213,701 2160,799

296,483 . 21,460 1.039.097 1,039.097 1,044,751
41.301 31,442 21,600 30,476 . 6,739 867.249 887.249 625,519

7W . 555,551 555.551 432905
- 150 36186 168,720 344,456 344,458 318,806
• 6,885 39,928 I.6S6 247.075 (70,000) 177.075 27.766

38 5 50 16 162 40.632 . 26,437
37,406

- . 37 408

158 588 136143 42 956 2.325 495 1,763,193 201.011 38004 196 919 18128074 (107.4061
27.924,557 158.588 136,143 4Z958 5.820,343 1.758,815 206,184 2218,056 214,264 38.487.930 (107,406) 36,360.522 32964,985

23.954,954 134,424 100,048 35,840 5,051,627 1.832128 145,743 2050,379 155,566 33.480.709 (37,406) 33.423.301 27,777.021
10,576 7.850 10,657 667,460 223.787 21.316 146,749 49,532 3.754.447 3.754,447 3,176.798

- • 82259 14 066 7 669 4 006 887 731 667 731
27,129 205 145,000 107 898 46.497 5801 346 2055915 181 125 2206,797 209104 37,682887 (37 4061

795.352 11,588 28,245 (3,539) 18,997 (289.100) 17.059 11,261 5,180 605,043 (70,000) 535,043 1.340.320

1 133113 25 469 21 386 14 134 230 582 3009 25,571 503 2517 1456 254

(337.761) (13,881) 6,859 (17.673) (211.585) (292109) 1,468 10,758 2663 (651,241) (70,000) (921,241) (14,126)

7,141.181 1197 1661 (2018) (160,782) 729 998 174,009 (83,293) 219.832 89045 7,690,784

6,803.420 3  1211 OSS) 3  4,641 3  (196 455) 3  518413 3  (1ia,1KI) 3  181,605) 3  230 590 3  91,708 3 7 039 543 3  (70.000) 3 6,969,543 3  7,890,764

See Independera AudSors' Report
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CURRENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS LIST (6/12/19)

Officers

Dan Sallet; Chair

Trent Smith, Vice-Chair

David Aponovich, Asst. Treasurer
Jared Freilich, Treasurer

Joel Jaffe, Secretary

Laurie Goguen, Asst. Secretary

Directors

Thomas I. Arnold, II

Jack Balcom

Vijay Bhatt

Vince Chamberlain

Phil Duhaime

Lynn King

Ed McDonough

Rick Plante

Rick Carvalho
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PETER J. KELLEHER, CCSW, LICSW

77 Northeastern Blvd

Nashua, NH 03062

Telephone^603)88^^ 6
Mobile:

- " Fax:(603)595-7414

E-mail: D.kelleher@nhDartnershiD.oriJ

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006-Present President & CEO, Southern NH HIV Task Force
2002-Present President & CEO, Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc./ Keystone Hall, Nashua, NH
1997-Present President & CEO, Healthy At Home, Inc., Nashua, NH
1995-Present President & CEO, Welcoming Light, Inc., Nashua, NH
1982-Present President & CEO, Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, NH

Currently employed as Chief Executive Officer of five nonprofit corporations (Partnership for Successful
Living) creating and providing residential and supportive services, mental health care, primary/preventive
health care, substance use disorder treatment and prevention services, supported employment and
workforce development, professional training, and in-home health care to individuals and families who are
homeless, living with disabilities, and/or are underserved/members of vulnerable populations. Responsible
for initiation, development, and oversight of more than 80 programs comprising a $42,000,000 operating
budget; proposal development resulting in approximately $200,000,000 in grants; oversight of 400
management and direct care professionals.

2003-2006 Consultant

Provided consultation and technical assistance throughout the State to aid service and mental health
organizations.

1980 - 1982 Real Estate Broker, LeVaux Realty, Cambridge, MA
Successful sales and property management specialist.

1979 - 1980 Clinical Coordinator, Task Oriented Communities, Waltham, MA
Established and provided comprehensive rehabilitation services to approximately 70 individuals with
mental and/or developmental disabilities. Hired, directly supervised, and trained a full-time staff of 20
residential coordinators. Developed community residences for the above clients in three Boston suburbs.
Provided emergency consultation on a 24-hour basis to staff dealing with crisis management in six group
homes and one sheltered workshop. Administrative responsibilities included some financial management,
quality assurance, and other accountability to state authorities.

Faculty, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
Instructor for an introductory group psychotherapy course offered through the Social Work Department.

Senior Social Worker/Assistant Director, Massachusetts Tuberculosis Treatment Center U, a unit of
Middlesex County Hospital, Waltbam, MA
Functioned as second in command and chief clinical supervisor for eight interdisciplinary team members,
and implemented a six-month residential program for individuals afflicted with recurring tuberculosis and
alcoholism. Provided group and individual therapy, relaxation training.

1976 Social Worker, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Out-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Employed in full-time summer position providing out patient counseling to individuals and groups of the
MIT community.

I97I - 1976 Program Counselor/Supervisor, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, MIT/Wellesley College
Upward Bound Program, Cambridge and Wellesley, MA
Major responsibilities consisted of psycho educational counseling of Upward Bound students, supervision
of tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evaluative research for program policy development.

1978- 1979

1977- 1979



EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE

1975 - 1977 Simmons College School of Social Work, Boston, MA
Cambridge-Somerville Community Mental Health Program, MSW

1971 - 1975 Clark University, Worcester, MA. Received Bachelor of Arts Degree in Psychology

LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

1979 Licensed Real Estate Broker - Massachusetts

1989 Academy of Certified Social Workers - NASW
1990 Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker - Massachusetts

1994 State of New Hampshire Certified Clinical Social Worker, MA LICSW

PLACEMENTS

1976 - 1977 Cambridge Hospital, In-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Individual, group, and family counseling to hospitalized patients.

1975 - 1976 Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Social Service Department, Cambridge, MA
Similar to above.

FIELD SUPERVISION

1983 - 1984 Antioch/New England Graduate School, Department of Professional Psychology, Keene, NH
1983 - 1984 Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH
1990 -1991 Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH

1978 - 1979 Middlesex Community College, Social Work Associates Program, Bedford, MA

AWARDS

High School Valedictorian Award
National Institute of Mental Health Traineeship in Social Work
University of New Hampshire Community Development 2003 Community Leader of the Year
NAM! NH 2007 Annual Award for Systems Change
Peter Medoff AIDS Housing Award 2007
The Walter J. Dunfey Corporate Fund Award for Excellence in Non Profit Management 2009
NH Magazine Business Excellence Award 2010
Nashua Telegraph Humanitarian of the Year Award 2015
Lionel W. Johnson Housing Award, Champion of Human Rights 2015
Military Officers Association Granite State Warriors Award 2016

MEMBERSHIPS

Former Member of the Department of Veterans Affairs Advisory Committee on Homeless Veterans

Board Member, Bi-State Primary Care Association
National Association of Social Workers

Former Board Member, National Healthcare for the Homeless

Former Chair, Governor's State Interagency Council on Homelessness/New Hampshire Policy Academy
Former Chair, Greater Nashua Continuum of Care

Former Board Member, New Futures, Concord, NH

Former Board Member, Community Health Access Network (CHAN)



Patricia A. Robitaille, CPA TEL:

PROFILE

•  12 years experience in Public Accounting
• Management experience

•  Diversified industry exposure
•  Counselor and mentor

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

•  Training experience
• Knowledge of multiple computer programs

Excellent client rapport
Tax preparation experience

June 2009 - Present Chief Financial Officer Harbor Homes, Inc. and related
Partnership for Successful IJving entities

•  Direcdy responsible for developing and managing budgets in excess of $44M, planning, cash
management, ControUer, grants and contracts falling under the business/accounting
office

•  Reviews and analyzes the monthly, quarterly and annual financial reports
•  Analyzes results of'cash'flows, budget expenditures and grant restrictions'
•  Assists the President/CEO-with financial planning - _
•  Coordinates financing for bonds, long term commercial loans
•  Financial oversight of capital improvement projects
•  Responsible for the annual financial and single audits of the Organization and all related entities
•  Re\tiews Federal 990 tax returns and state returns

Jan. 2007 - Oct. 2008 Audit Manager Ernst Young LLP, Manchester, NH
Managed audits of private corporations with revenues up to $200 million

Assisted as manager of audits for public corporations with revenues up to $400 million

Reviewed and assisted preparation of financial statements, lOQ quarterly filings and lOK annual
filings

Analyzed and reviewed internal control under Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act

Prepared management comments in conjunction with material weakness or significant
deficiencies

jun. 1997 —Jan. 2007 Audit Supervisor Melanson Heath & Company, P.C., Nashua, NH

•  Supervise/train various teams for commercial, not-for-profit, and municipal audits and agreed
upon procedures

•  Audit services include balance sheet reconciliation including inventor)' control

•  Preparation and presentation of financial statements

•  Preparation of management comment letters for internal qualit)' improvement

•  Assist clients with all aspects of accounting

•  Preparation of budgets and cash forecasting

•  Consulting sendees to clients including maximization of profits



Extensive corporate tax preparation experience

1993 - 1997 Abcouhtihg/OfBce Manager Hammar Hardware Company, Nashua, NH

■ Management of a five-person staff

■ Oversaw accounts receivable, accounts payable and general ledger reconciliation

■ Responsible for inventory management, preparation for year-end audit and collaboration with
external auditors

■ Prepared monthly internal financial statements

■ Responsible for payroll including quarterlies and year-end reporting

EDUCATION

1988-1991 Rivier College, Nashua, NH — Bachelor of Science, Accounting

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS . • • . ■ .

Licensed Certified Public Accountant in the State of New Hampshire
Member of tlie New Hampshire Society of Certified Public Accountants
Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

SOFTWARE EXPERIENCE

Excel, Word, Powerpoint, Pro-Fx Tax software, Pro-Fx Trial balance software, Quickbooks,
Peachtree, Abila Accounting Software, T-Value, various auditing software programs



ANA PANCINE

Education

Southern NH University 201-5 -201-7—
Masters of Business Administration & Finance

Hesser College 2001 - 2005
Bachelor of Science, Business Administration - Minor in Finance

•  Trained Medical Interpreter: Portuguese & Spanish

•  Trained Translator: Portuguese

•  Skilled USCIS Interpreter

Experience

Harbor Homes Inc. Nashua, NH November 2007 - Present
Chief Revenue Officer August 2018 - Present
•  Supervise and Manage Business/Finance Office team composed by 15 staff members,

performing duties such as: A/R, A/P, Staff Accountant, Senior Staff Accountant,
Credentialing, Medicare/Medicaid/Private/Self-pay Billing.

•  Internal and external reports for State & Federal projects.

•  Prepare complex financial statements, internal/annual reports for planning ̂ d oversight of
each program within organization

•  Review for accuracy all profit and loss, general ledger, trial balance reports for all 92 cost

centers on a monthly basis

• Knowledge of planning techniques, test and sampling methods involved in conducting audits.

•  Extensive experiencFwitlTFinMciarStatemHitraudit^Teviewr, compilations ̂ 'd audits' for"
Governmental organizations (A-133).

• Managed annual external audit resulting in no findings and no management comments on A-
133 audits.

•  Provide support to CFO on all special projects, as well as current back up for this position.
•  Provide oversight/approval for all general ledger entries, revenue recognition, purchase

orders approvals, as well as all day to day accounting concerns/issues.

•  Prepare all budgets for Development Department to be submitted for competitive State,
Federal and Local grant applications

•  Provide support to all program managers to ensure program compliances and financial
requirements are met.

• Review all financial requirements and financial accuracy for new and renewed contracts

•  Prepare, review and update all Finance/Accounting policies and procedure to ensure
compliance with new Federal regulations.

Financial Controller November 2007 - August 2018
•  Budget development for 92 cost centers and 8 affiliated agencies with annual expenses and

revenue over $22m

•  Prepare operational and variance analysis for financial presentation based on organization.
State and Federal guideline.



•  Prepare and review for accuracy all profit and loss, general ledger, trial balance reports for all
92 cost centers on a monthly basis

• Maintain accurate accounts including cash, inventory, prepaid, fixed assets, accounts
payable, accrued expenses and line of credit transactidhs^

•  Chair of the Greater Nashua Continuum Care (GNCOC), as well as. Chair of the GNCOC
Board of Directors, composed by representatives of the Federal, State, and City
Governments, housing program directors, local hospitals, social services agencies, financial
institutions, private sector and religious institutions.

Hewlett-Packard Various locations August 2001 - November 2007
Business Analyst February 2004 - November 2007

Accountable for all metric reports for the PER Event team contracts on a monthly basis.

Responsible for revenue recognition for two US districts, Latin America and Canada.

Accountable to update, present and distribute all reports related to the department, which
included financial reports, risk reports, contract metric reports.

Responsible for all billing for Latin America and prepared currency translation reporting.

Managed ten cost centers with annual expenses of $9m and revenue of $ 18m..

Variance reporting monthly for +/-! % of forecasted to report to senior management.

Maintained global reporting of 200 employees with emphasis on geographic alignment,
individual line counts, and organizational charts for account utilization and resource mapping

Main contact for all customers and service providers located in the Latin America territory.

Provided Financial Support for account closing.
Quality Controller/ System Support Admin June 2003 - February 2004

Main contact between administrators and system support to prioritize technical errors.

Responsible for weekly, monthly and quarterly quality review reporting, geography reports

Maintain all employee related spreadsheets updated.

Managed quality review reports to ensure policies and procedures are being followed.

Mentored new hires and provided support for team members with problem solving.
*er Event Administrator August 2001 - June 2003

Responsible for billing revenue.

Maintenance of contracts, including service changes and billing.

Data Entry

Revenue booking and customer assistance for Latin America/Caribbean territory.

Assistance and service provided for all customer located in the Latin

America/Caribbean/Europe territory

Skills

Computer: Windows, Microsoft Office, SIFT - Financial Database, Fundware/F9
Finance related: PEARS/CHAMP/WFM, NCAS/SAP, SAGE - MIP,
Language: Fluent Portuguese, Proficient Spanish



(mobile) -|

Vanessa J. Talasazan

Education

2018 M.S. Community Economic Development Southern NH University
-Outstanding Student Award, 4.0 CPA

2007 B.A in English with a focus in Communications University of New Hampshire

1999 - Current Licensed New Hampshire Real Estate Agent Continuing Education Ongoing

Career History

April 2008-Current Partnership for Successful Living Affiliates Nashua, NH

Background on Agencies/Emplover: A unique partnership amongst 6 non-profit organizations with a combined
annual operating budget of $4-2 million that share the same CEO, Board of Directors, and back-end
administration: Harbor Homes, Inc.; Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force, Greater Nashua Council on_
Alcoholism (Keystone Hall); Welcoming Light; Healthy at Home, and Milford Regional Counseling Services.
Together, the agencies serve over 8,000 individuals and families annually. Named NH's most innovative
nonprofit organization by The NH Center for Nonprofits.

Current Role: Chief Strategy Officer/ Chief of Staff

Primary Responsibilities: Key member of C-suite leadership across six companies, a hybrid role that
encompasses two complementary positions: that of the Chief Strategy Officer (CSO) and that of Chief of Staff
(COS).

Chief Strategy Officer Responsibilities; Responsible for fomializing the organization's strategic-
planning processes, leading the development of the strategy, translating it for people across functions and
business units, driving organizational change, forging new working relationships and synergies across the
organization, and establishing greater transparency and accountability for those people carrying out the
organization's strategy. In addition responsible for assessing whether strategic initiatives, at all levels of the
organization, are in line with the company's standards and objectives.

Key duties include:

•  Supervise the grant department: responsible for implementing and achieving an annual grant
fundraising campaign of approximately $20 million. Manage team of writers and special project
coordinators to achieve new and repeat grant funding opportunities, effectively balancing the grants'
strategic impact to the PSL.

• Design and initiate new programs and services from conception and funding to launch,
ensuring alignment with the organization's strategic plan.

•  Serve as the lead staff person of the Housing Development Project Management Team:
plan and implement the construction of healthcare facilities and low-income housing
developments including emergency, transitional, and permanent supportive initiatives.

1



Chief OF Staff Responsibilities: Primary responsibility is to enable the CEO to work most'effectively with
internal and external stakeholders and fulfill his commitments to the Partnership for Successful Living's
partners, flmders, and Board of Directors. Key duties include acting as a gatekeeper to the CEO; advising the
CEO; autonomously competing tasks in place of the CEO; and organizing the CEO's direct reports and other
staff members toward common goals.

Key duties include:

•  Preparing for, and facilitating, "critical path" CEO meetings (e.g., with PSL executive
leadership, current or potential PSL partners, fimders, community and business leaders,
government officials, and peer executives).

•  Coordinating projects or commitments directly involving the CEO and his direct reports
•  Independently leading special CEO-initiated projects, ranging from written products to be

authored by the CEO to convening thought leaders on various topics.
•  Developing draft communication on behalf of the CEO ranging from: the CEO update at

Board meetings, to follow up correspondence related to the CEO's various meetings with
PSL fimders, partners and staff, to various speaking engagements involving external
audiences.

•  Understanding, communicating, and accurately representing the CEO's point of view on
a wide range of topics at internal and external meetings when appropriate and as
requested.

•  Proactively identifying issues that could impact the successful execution of the CEO's
commitments, elevating issues the CEO should be aware of, and framing/positioning
ideas to resolve the problem/mitigate the risk

•  Supporting the needs of the executive staff in their ability to raise critical issues with the
CEO and receive needed responses, guidance, and decisions.

• Managing critical projects and bring them to successful outcomes by deftly bringing together
intemal and extemal stakeholders for a common purpose, facilitating these individuals to set
aside personal goals and replace them with team goals, and helping them collaborate.

Previous Role: Vice President of Development and Grant Compliance

Primary Responsibilities'. Key member of intercompany management team; lead all grant writing, efforts;
supervise a team of development staff and interns; identify, write, and submit federal, state, corporate, and
foundation grant requests; new program development and strategic planning; create and implement evaluations,
outcome measurements, and data analysis tools to ensure grant compliance; create corrective action plans to
remedy identified compliance issues; expertise in the creation and execution of events, capital campaigns, and
individual and corporate giving activities; liaison with board of directors and major donors.

Achievements include program design leading to more than $120 million in federal, state and foundation grant
funding obtained since 2008, including grants from:

-US Department of Veteran Affairs
-US Department of Housing & Urban Development
-US Department of Labor
-US Department of Health Resources Services Administration
-US Department of Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
-Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston



-NH Community Development Finance Authority
-NH Housing Finance Authority
-NH.Bureau.of-Drug.and Alcohol-Services.
-NH Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services
-NH Department of Justice
-NH Charitable Foundation

2000 - 2008 Assist2Sell Buyers & Sellers Realty Nashua, NH

Licensed NH Real Estate Agent

Primary Responsibilities: Created and negotiated successful contract agreements related to the sale of
residential and commercial properties as an Exclusive Buyer Agent, Seller Agent, or Dual Agent; and upheld
fiduciary duties to the respected parties. Regularly achieved more than $10 million in sales annually.



Heather Nelson

h.nelson@nhpartnership.org

OBJECTIVE

To obtain a position in senior management that is challenging and offers an opportunity to
advance in my career.

EXPERIENCE

Director HUD Housing 2018>pre8ent

Interim Co-Program Manager - HBS 10/18-present

Assistant Director HUD Housing 2017-pre$ent

Harbor Homes Inc. Nashua, NH

'  Oversee operation and management of at) HUO funded housing programs as well as Project
Based Vash

Work coiiaborativeiy with business office to decrease spending and increase revenues
Monitor rent revenue on a monthly basis to ensure residents are paying their rent
Represent Harbor Homes Inc. whenever possible in the case of an eviction

Oversee HIC, PIC, & APR data for ail HUD funded projects
Provide guidance to team members on progress of ail cases. Ensure HUD compliance and
professionalism

Maintain inventory of upcoming/current vacancies In HUD housing programs
Oversee budget, planning, and ail activities of the 5.C.O.A.P. program

Participate as chairperson of the GNCoC

Permanent Housing Program Manager 2007-2017

Harbor Homes Inc. Nashua, NH

Manage & oversee 7 Permanent Housing programs

Oversee assistant program manager and provide supervision

and routine assessment of performance

Monitor the implementation of residential service plans and

services for program participants

Coordinate verification of eligibility requirements and maintain

financial documentation as required by HUD

Coordinate services with community resources for program

participants

Monitor the quality of ail resident files & and ensure accuracy

and HUD compliance

Oversee & facilitate ail entries & exits from the program

Oversee budget, planning, and ail activities of the S.C.O.A.P.

program

Permanent Housing Program Assistant Manager 2006-
2007

Harbor Homes Inc. Nashua, NH

Provide symptom management to 25-28 consumers on a weekly basis

Provide documentation of interactions with consumers

Responsible for staff scheduling with consumers
Work coiiaborativeiy with all members of treatment teams



Assist residents to set goals and work towards achieving desired outcomes

Assist Program Manager to complete daily tasks as needed

Complete quarterly reports on services provided to the local community health center

Permanent Housing Case Manager 2004*
2006

CNCA Inc., Harbor Homes Inc. Nashua, NH

Assist clients with AOL skills

Assist clients to set goals and take necessary steps towards achieving desired outcome
Assist clients with money management and budgeting skills

Keep documentation of all client interactions

Report to a team of individuals on a weekly basis to discuss consumers and their individuai

needs

Office Manager/Volunteer Coordinator 2005-2006

GNCA Inc., Nashua, NH

Oversee and document all Federal Drug screens
Responsible for all client wait lists, coordinating services & communication for all departments
Direct all public contacts to the appropriate department and/or staff member
Provide documentation for the courts regarding client participation and compliance
Coordinate & Maintain database of referral services

Supervise and coordinate volunteer program
Interview & train all volunteers

EDUCATION

NH Community Technical College, Nashua, NH 2003-
2005

Human Service Major

Graduate with a 3.75 GPA

Magna Cum Laude

Member of Phi Theta Kappa

Received Human Service Worker of the Future Award

Received award for Highest Cumulative GPA In Human Services

Who's Who Among Students in American Jr. Colleges



— " Erin Sawicki; MPH

Education

2004 - 2006 University of Massachusetts, Amherst
Master of Public Health, Community Health Education concentration

2000- 2004 University of Vermont, Burlington
Bachelor of Arts, Anthropology major

Experience
Grants Manager - Partnership for Successful Living
2019- present

•  Prepare and review monthly, quarterly, and annual sponsor/internal fmancial and
programmatic reports

•  Review budgets and monthly expenditure reconciliations
•  Ensure files are prepared for random and scheduled audits
•  Ensure compliance with grant requirements and internal policies and prcedures

Senior Research Associate-=-Barker Bi^Coastal Health Consultants, Inc: •
2016-2019 ■ -

•  Collected and analyzed data to inform funding decisions at Robert'Wood Johnson
Foundation

• Wrote evaluation reports to aid in strategic planning at the Robert Wood Johnson
Foundation

.  • Collaborated_with.s.takehQlders_at.all.levels_to_gather_feedback.and.identify
opportunities for growth

• Managed research associates in evaluation of policy implementation

Grant Writer - Child and Family Services
2016-2018

•  Drafted and edited foundation grant applications, budgets, and progress reports
•  Collaborated with donors and development team to develop grant application

strategies

Site Manager - Planned Parenthood of Northern New England
2013-2016

•  Tracked and evaluated program outcome data to inform strategic planning and grant
deliverables

•  Initiated community and stakeholder partnerships to promote services and create
referral network

•  Led quality improvement and performance measurement initiatives in the health
center

•  Oversaw operational systems and processes to ensure compliance for internal and
external audits

• Maintained fmancial records, reconciled expenditures, and managed health center
budget



HIV Program Manager - Project Protection, Children's Hospital Boston
2010-2013

•  Developed, implemented, and managed evidence-based work plan from pre-award to
post-award

o Liaised with grant writer to research, write, and submit grant proposals
o Approved expenditures, monitored budget, and submitted reports for

$750,000 grant
o Hired, trained, and supervised direct service staff

•  Communicated with funders/auditors to ensure grant deliverables were met and
exceeded

•  Collaborated with community stakeholders to grow the program and secure referrals

Program Support Officer - Office of the Global AIDS Coordinator, US State Department
2009-2010

• Managed the technical review and balanced budgets of HIV/AIDS Country
Operational Plans

•  Collaborated with U.S. government team in Rwanda to resolve program issues

District AIDS Coordinator - United States Peace Corps, Botswana
2007-2009

•  Conducted program development, community organizing and needs assessments in
23 villages

•  Fostered networks and alliances between community stakeholders and government
institutions. .. . .

•  Promoted and facilitated the first life skills training/education curriculum for
Botswana youth

Health Educator - UMass Extension Family Nutrition Program
2004-2006

•  Developed and taught nutrition classes for youth in low-income communities
• Wrote and managed proposals and evaluations

Publications

Sawicki E, Barker DC, Gutman MA, Caughlan 1, Yochelson M, Grob G. A Menu to Evaluate
Factors Influencing Implementation of Obesity Prevention Early Care and Education
Regulations. Journal of Public Health Management and Practice. 2018; 1.
doi: 10.1097/phh.0000000000000796.

Awards

2018 American Evaluation Association Outstanding Evaluation



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Pe'rsonner

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Peter Kelleher President and CEO $338,146 0% $0

Patricia Robitaille CFO $150,000 0% . $0

Ana Pancine Chief Revenue Officer $115,000 0% $0

Vanessa Talasazan Chief Strategy Officer $115,000 0% $0

Heather Nelson Housing Director $73,500 17% $12,495

Erin Sawicki Grants Manager $60,000 5% $3,000



Agreement to Terminate Contract Amendment
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Harbor Homes, Inc./Housing Bridge Subsidy Services for Former Inmates

AGREEMENT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT AMENDMENT

This Agreement to Terminate Contract Amendment (the "Agreement") is hereby made by and
between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services. Bureau of
Drug and Alcohol Services (hereinafter "Department"), of 129 Pleasant Street. Concord. New
Hampshire 03301 and Harbor Homes. Inc. (hereinafter "Contractor"), of 45 High Street. Nashua.
New Hampshire 03060. The Department and the Contractor are mutually referred to as "the
Parties."

WHEREAS, on Octot)er 29, 2014 (Item #14), the Governor and Executive Council approved a
contract between the Parties for administration of the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program, which
provides housing services and subsidies for rent for persons with mental Illness who are at risk
of being homeless. This contract was amended by agreement on June 10. 2015 (Item #7);

WHEREAS, the parties entered Into a sole source agreement to amend the Housing Bridge
Subsidy Program contract, in order to expand the program to provide housing services to former
inmates with substance use disorders vrfio are re-entering the community, which was approved
by the Governor and Executive Council on April 19, 2017 (Item #14B);

WHEREAS, the parties agree that the sole source agreement to amend the Housing Bridge
Subsidy Program contract shall be terminated and that the remainder of the contract and
contract amendments remain unchanged. The only services and funding to be terminated are
related to the amendment approved on April 19, 2017 (Item #14B) regarding the expansion of
the Housing Bridge subsidy program to provide housing services to former Inmates (hereinafter
the "Contract Amendment");

WHEREAS. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions and Paragraph 2 of Exhibit C-1 of the
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program contract permit termination prior to the completion date of
sen/Ices;

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that an early termination of the Contract Amendment regarding
the provision of housing services to former inmates is in the best interests of the Department
and the Contractor;

WHEREAS, the Contractor agrees to waive the formal thirty (30) day written notification
required for termination under the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program contract;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein, the Parties
agree and acknov4edge as follows:

1. Effective date. The Parties agree that the Contract Amendment is terminated effective
December 31, 2018, with the exception of the Contractor's obligation to make lease payments
for existing clients for the months of January, 2019 and February, 2019.

2. Outstandino Invoices and Reports. On or before February 28. 2019, the Contractor must
submit all outstanding Invoices for all work completed, and costs incurred through the Contract
Amendment termination date of Deceml:)er 31, 2018. The Contractor must also submit invoices
for lease payments referenced In paragraph 1 above by February 28. 2019. The Department will
not pay invoices submitted after February 28. 2019. The Contractor agrees that the remaining
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Agreement to Terminate Contract Amendment
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Harbor Homes. InciHousIng Bridge Subsidy Services for Former Inmates

contract balance will not be paid to them,
before February 28, 2019.

The Contractor must submit all required reports on or

3. Survival. The terms of the Contract that either explicitly or by their nature are intended
to survive the temiinatlon of the Contract Amendment, including but not limited to Contractor's
obligations to defend and indemnify the State, shall survive this agreement.

4. Transition of Services. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with the Department and
with any subsequent vendor in the transition of services including, but not limited to, obtaining
authorization from clients and transferring treatment records as authorized by law.

5. Release and Waiver of Claims. The Contractor agrees that payment of the outstanding
invoices referenced in paragraph 2 above represents the sole financial obligation of the
Department to the Contractor under this Contract Amendment. Except for payment of
outstanding invoices, the Contractor hereby agrees to waive and release all claims, demands,
payments, or liabilities that it had or may have against the Department arising out of or relating
to its work under the Contract Amendment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity of the State, which
immunity is hereby reserved to the State.

6. General. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Department
and the Contractor with respect to the subject matter hereof and cannot be modified except by
mutual written agreement between the Parties. This Agreement, its validity, construction and
effect will be governed by the laws of the State of New Hampshire. Venue for any action
between the parties shall be in Merrimack County. State of New Hampshire. Waiver of any
breach of this Agreement shall not be a waiver of any subsequent breach, nor shall it be a
waiver of the underlying obligation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed and delivered this Agreement on
the Effective Date.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DHHS, BOAS

By-

Name: pix

HARBOR HOMES

Title: T) j-h

Date: ' t t W ) i

Name

Title:.

Date: l\5^l i°i
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Agreement to Terminate Contract Amendment
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Harbor Homes, inc./HousIng Bridge Subsidy Services for Former Inmates

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of |l )V\ ^ County of l-ldblooir?!^:;in on l|'?l 1*^
sared the person idemlfied directly above,

^  , before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the personldedtified directly above, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed
this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of
Public

State of New Hampshire
My CommlBsion Expires June 29,2021

My.Ccmntjsslon Expires:
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Jtffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Kiijn & Fox
Director

1^6 0

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HDMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhh5.nh.gov

April 7. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, Ne\N Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

(1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen/ices to exercise a renewal
option to an existing agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc., (Vendor #155358), 45 High Street,
Nashua. NH 03060, by increasing the price limitation by $8,424,320 from $10,038,853 to
$18,463,173 and by extending the contract completion date from June 30. 2017 to June 30.
2019, effective July 1, 2017. Governor and Executive Council approved the original agreement
on October 29, 2014 (Item #16) and a subsequent amendment on June 10. 2015 (Item# 7).
Funding Is 100% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2017 and anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018 and State Fiscal Year 2019 upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget with the ability to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified. 05-95-92-922010-
41170000-102 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,

HHS: BUREAU OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Vendor Vendor

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/Decrease

Amount

Revised Amount

Harbor Homes. Inc. 155358 $10,038,853 $8,424,320 $18,463,173

(2) Contingent upon the approval of Requested Action (1), further authorize the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a Sole Source Amendment with
Harbor Homes, Inc.. to expand the Housing Bridge Subsidy program to provide housing
sen/ices to former inmates with substance use disorders who are re-entering the community, as
defined in Exhibit A-1. by increasing the price limitation by $500,000 from $18,463,173 to
$18,963,173 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2019, effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. Funding Is 100% Governor Commission Funds.

Funds are available in the following account in State Fiscal Year 2017. 05-95-49-491510-29890000-
102 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DIV OF
COMM BASED CARE SVC. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION
FUNDS



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2

Vendor Vendor

Number

Current

Amount

Increase/Decrease

Amount

Revised Amount

Harbor Homes, Inc. 155358 $18,463,173 $500,000 $18,963,173

SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL DETAILS

EXPLANATION

The Division of Behavioral Health is New Hampshire's single state mental health authority. The
Division seeks to promote full community inclusion for adults (18 years or older) having severe mental
illness, severe and persistent mental illness or who are severely mentally disabled. The State places a
high emphasis on supporting individuals in their community with a broad range of supports and
sen/ices that reduce the need for inpatient care.

Requested Action (1), supports New Hampshire's compliance with the Supported Housing
provisions contained within the Community Mental Health Agreement (Amanda D. Settlement). Under
the Agreement, the State must develop and implement measures to ensure that supported housing
meets individuals' needs. Supported Housing overlays client-specific mental health services to support
an individual's ability to live within the community with housing supported by any subsidies from any
source, included State-funded rental subsidies through the Housing Bridge Subsidy program. The
Agreement requires the State to develop, by June 30, 2017, 450 supported housing units.

The Department, in collaboration with the New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA),
established a cooperative agreement that identified consumers with a severe mental illness who have
been admitted to New Hampshire Hospital as a new priority group to gain access to federal Section
8/Housing Choice Vouchers. The Housing Bridge Subsidy Program provides housing services and
subsidies for individuals with severe mental illness, who are at risk of becoming homeless, through the
provision of tenant-based rental assistance made available until such time that a Section 8 voucher
becomes available for the individual. Since the program is modeled after the Section 8 program
therefore participants are responsible to pay 30% of their income toward their rent.

If approved. Requested Action (1) will authorize Hartx)r Homes, Inc. to deliver the required
Housing Bridge Subsidy program, and ensure that services will be delivered in accordance with
Administrative Rule He-M 406, Housing Bridge Subsidy program. Under this contract, up to $689 per
month per individual will be provided for safe and affordable housing, and housing placement sen/ices
will be provided for up to 450 consumers throughout the state. A consumer does not have to
participate in community mental health services in order to receive rental assistance.

If approved, Requested Action (2) will authorize the inclusion of an additional scope of services
(Exhibit A-1) into the agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc. to expand housing services to former inmates
of-the New Hampshire Department of Corrections who have a Substance Use Disorder that are re-
entering the community. The additional scope requires Harbor Homes, Inc. to work with the
Department and the New Hampshire Department of Corrections to assist the transition of justice-
involved individuals with a Substance Use Disorder into housing and housing supports. These services
are being incorporated per a one-time funding allocation for alternative sentencing appropriated to the
Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention Treatment and Recovery created by
SB 533. This one time funding must be expended by June 30, 2017.

This Amendment is sole source, because Harbor Homes, Inc. is uniquely positioned to
implement the Substance Use Disorder re-entry program given its existing relationships with landlords
and community partners that participate in the Bridge Subsidy Program. Harbor Homes, Inc. will be
responsible for providing rental assistance, for individuals with Substance Use Disorder re-entering the
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community from Incarceration, for a period of up to three (3) months. Similar to the scope of work for
the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program, Harbor Homes, Inc. will also work with treatment providers,
community organizations, and case managers to ensure individuals have access to needed health and
social supports, including assistance with finding employment and securing housing following the
three-month subsidy.

Harbor Homes, Inc. has fulfilled the requirements of the original contract. Under this
amendment, the contractor will continue to work collaboratively with the Department in order to provide

housing services and subsidies for New Hampshire's individuals with mental illness and/or justice-
involved individuals with Substance Use Disorders.

T>ie original contract was competitively bid. The original contract had a two (2) year option to
renew and the Department Is exercising that option.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve these requested actions, individuals
vt/ith severe mental illness who are homeless and ready for discharge from an institution; individuals
with a Substance Use Disorder who are ready for discharge from an institution; and individuals who are
graduating or timing out of transitional housing may either remain in their current more costly
environments without being able to return to the community of their choice; remain homeless; or
become homeless.

Area served; Statewide

Source of funds for Requested Item #1,100% General Funds.

Source of funds for Requested Item #2, 100% Governor Commission Funds

Respectfully submitted,

Approved by:

KaM S. Fox

Director

jOTrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Financial Details

05-95-92-920010-59450000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SERVICES. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Object

Class Title Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase /

Decrease

Modified

Budget

2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92205945 $2,214,033 $0 $2,214,033

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92205945 $1,923,160 $0 $1,923,160

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92205945 $1,923,160 $0 $1,923,160

Sub-Total: $6,060,353 $0 $6,060,353

05-95-92-920010-59450000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT. OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Object

Class Title Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase /

Decrease

Modified

Budget

2015 103-502664 Contracts for Operational
Services

92204000 $0 $0 SO

2016 103-502664 Contracts for Operational
Services

92204000 $1,689,500 $0 $1,669,500

2017 103-502664 Contracts for Operational
Services

92204000 $2,289,000 $0 $2,289,000

Sub-Total: $3,978,500 $0 $3,978,500

05-95-92-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: BUREAU OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Object
Class Title Activity

Code

Current

Budget

Increase /

Decrease

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92204117 $0 $4,212,160 $4,212,160

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92204117 $0 $4,212,160 $4,212,160

Sub-Total: $0 $8,424,320 $8,424,320

05-95-49-491510-29890000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC. BUREAU OF
DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Object

Class Title Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase /

Decrease

Modified

Budget

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

49158503 $0 $500,000 $500,000

Sub-

Total:

$0 $500,000 $500,000

Grand

Total

$10,038,853 $8,924,320 $18,963,173



Amendment #2 to the Harbor Homes Inc. Contract for
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Contract

This second Amendment to the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #2") dated this 31** day of January, 2017, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Departmenr) and
Harbor Homes, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of
business at 45 High Street. Nashua, New Hampshire 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contracr) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 29, 2014 (Item #16). and Amendment #1 approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
June 10. 2015 (Item #7) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 this agreement may be amended only by
an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment by the
Governor and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire;

WHEREAS the State and the Contractor have agreed to extend the term of the agreement, increase the
price limitation, and to add services;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows;

To amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Item 1.6, Account Number to add:

095-092-92210-41170000-500731

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Item 1.7, Completion date to read:

June 30, 2019.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Item 1.8 Price Limitation, to read:

$18,963,173

4. Delete Exhibit A, Section 4, paragraph 4.1 and replace with the following:

4.1 The Contractor shall provide HBSP services to a minimum of 450 consumers.

5. Add Exhibit A-1. Amendment #2.

6. Add Exhibit B-1, Amendment #2.

7. Add Exhibit B^ (SFY 2018 budget) and B-5 (SFY 2019 budget).

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Amendment #2
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Amendment #2 to the Hart)or Homes Inc. Contract for

Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

"I ^
Date

Katja S. Fox
Director

eS.^nc

Date NameH'itle

Acknowledgement: : .
State of . County of H.lLho-vy^ on before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

WILUAM 0. MABTIN

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Amendment #2
Page 2 of 3



Amendment #2 to the Hart)or Homes Inc. Contract for

Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF IfHE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date / / mA'M 4Name;

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Goyernor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Harbor Homes. Inc.
Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A-1

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purpose of this Contract, any reference to days shall be a reference to
business days.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services to individuals and families who meet the
criteria for the Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Re-Entry Housing Subsidy,
statewide.

1.3. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall facilitate housing placement for individuals eligible for the
SUD Re-Entry Housing Subsidy Program. The Contractor shall:

2.1.1. Contact the consumer's or their designated agent correctional Institution
to schedule a face-to-face meeting with the consumer and the
consumer's support team that may include, but is not limited to the
consumer's guardian or other involved family member; the referring
agent; a representative from the Division for Behavioral Health (DBH);
and an appropriate substance use disorder treatment provider.

2.1.2. Work with the consumer's support team, listed In Section 2.1.1, to:

2.1.2.1. Assess consumer's Immediate temporary housing needs.

2.1.2.2. Create an individualized housing plan within fifteen (15) days
from the date the initial referral for services is received.

Housing plans may include, but are not limited to, supportive
services; access to substance use disorder services and

behavioral health care; and access to primary health care.

2.1.3. Ensure successful acquisition of consumer housing services within ten
(10) days of receiving the initial referral. The Contractor shall:

2.1.3.1. Assess consumer housing preferences and housing history.

2.1.3.2. Assist consumers with identifying available housing units in
consumers' communities of choice.

2.1.3.3. Assist consumers with obtaining, completing and submitting
housing applications.

2.1.3.4. Assist consumers with attending housing provider meetings,
as appropriate, which include, but are not limited to,
performing housing unit inspections; and assisting consumers
with identifying initial rental needs and resources.

Amendment #2 fi)/
Hafbof Homes. Inc. Exhibit A-1 Contractor Initials II
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A*1

2.1.3.5. Work with the consumer and the consumer's support team
identified In Section 2.1.1, to facilitate paperwork needed to
verify income and program eligibility.

2.1.4. Assist consumers with identifying initial rental needs and resources,
such as security deposits, utilities and furniture.

2.1.5. Use HUD'S habitability standards form to complete housing inspections.

2.1.6. Assist consumers with applying for and obtaining benefits for which the
consumer may be eligible, including but not limited to, security and
utility deposit assistance, TANF, food stamps, and SSI/SSDI.

2.1.6.1. The Contractor shall work with the Department to maintain
regular communication with appropriate benefit eligibility staff
to ensure eligibility is not impacted by subsidy receipt.

2.1.7. Remain in close communication with the consumer for the full ninety
(90) days of the consumer obtaining housing. The Contractor shall:

2.1.7.1. Revise housing and support services plan, if necessary.

2.1.7.2. Identify resources within the community that can assist
consumers, including but not limited to, peer support agencies;
faith-based groups; transportation services; primary care
services; homemaker/personal care services: legal aid; and
meals-on-wheels.

2.1.7.3. Identify consumers' needs through treatment team meetings;
self- observations; and feedback from landlords and the local
substance use disorder services case managers.

2.1.7.4. Work with the consumer to identify long-term sustainable
housing options to plan for expiration of subsidy terms.

2.1.7.5. Work with the Department to identify benefit eligibility
restrictions and impacts based on subsidy receipt.

2.2. The Contractor shall administer SUD Re-entry Housing Subsidy services, which
may include, but are not limited to:

2.2.1. Finding housing for current consumers, as described in Section 2.1.3.

2.2.2. Completing monthly inspections of consumers' apartments.

2.2.3. Being the point of contact for landlords.

2.2.4. Ensuring timely rental payments to landlords.

2.2.5. Ensuring timely payment to utility companies.

2.2.6. Ensuring consistent communication with the consumer's parole officer.

2.3. The Contractor shall provide funding for up to ninety (90) days to provide rent,
security deposits, and essential utility bills (i.e. heat, hot water and electricity.
Any additional essential bills will require Department approval.

Amendment tf2

Harbor Homes. Inc. Exhibit A-1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A-1

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure sufficient staffing to provide housing placement
and support services to a minimum of seventy-five (75) consumers. The
Contractor shall ensure:

2.4.1. All staffing and volunteers undergo New Hampshire criminal
background checks.

2.4.2. All staffing and volunteer names are submitted to the Bureau of Adult
and Elderly Services for review against the State Consumer Protective
Service Registry.

2.5. The Contractor shall ensure all complaints regarding SUD Re-Entry Housing
Subsidy services are investigated by the Complaint Investigator within fifteen
(15) days of receiving the complaint. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.5.1. All parties relevant to the complaint are interviewed by the Complaint
Investigator.

2.5.2. A determination is made by the Copnplaint Investigator as to
whether the complaint is founded or unfounded.

2.5.3. The complainant is notified, in writing, of the finding.

2.5.4. All complainants' identities are kept confidential.

2.5.5. Complainants are aware of the Contractor's process to request an
appeal of findings.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports to the Department that are based
on Section 3, Reporting Requirements.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly progress reports to the Department. The
reports must be in narrative form summarizing the results of project activities
and showing in particular how project activities were performed for the previous
month. Monthly reports shall include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. The number of participating consumers' assisted during the month.

3.1.2. The number of consumers who exited the project during the month.

3.1.3. The number of consumers who attained stable housing.

3.1.4. The number of consumers refered to and participating in substance
use disorder and behavioral health services

3.1.5. Demographic consumer information.

3.1.6. Barriers experienced by the program

3.1.7. Solutions to avoiding barriers identified.

4. Deliverables

4.1. The Contractor shall provide housing placement services to a minimum of
seventy-five (75) consumers. The Contractor shall ensure:

Amendment #2

Hart>or Homes. Inc. Exhitxt A-l Contractor Ir^tials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A-1

4.1.1. Eighty (80) percent of consumers secure housing in their community of
choice or the community approved by the Parole Board.

4.1.2. Seventy (70) percent of consumers maintain housing for a minimum of
three (3) months.

4.1.3. One hundred (100) percent of consumers are referred to and enrolled in
SLID and behavioral health care as deemed appropriate by a clinical
assessmerit and individualized treatment plan.

4.1.4. Seventy-five (75) percent of consumers receive ongoing SLID treatment
In accordance with an appropriate clinical assessment and
individualized treatment plan.

Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment 02 to the Harbor Homes Inc. Contract for

Housing Bridge Subsidy Program
Exhibit B-1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the.Price Limitation on Form P37, Block
1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with general funds, Governor and Commission Funds, anticipated to be
available based upon continued appropriation, which are conditioned.upon continued support of the
program by the state and federal governments.

3. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual expenditures.
Expenditures shall be In accordance with the approved line item budgets shown in Exhibits B-1 and
B-2.

4. Payment for services shall be made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor must submit monthly invoices for reimbursement by the 20"* of each month for
services specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services. The State shall make payrnent to the
Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for Contractor services provided
pursuant to this Agreement.

4.2. The invoices must;

4.2.1. Clearly identify the amount requested and the sen/ices performed during that period.

4.2.2. Include a detailed account of the work performed,.arid a list of deliverables completed
during that prior month, as outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of Sen/ices.

4.2.3. Separately identify any work and amount of attributable and performed by an approved
contractor. If applicable.

4.3. Invoices and reports identified in Section 4.1 and 4.2 must be submitted to;

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in
Exhibit A.

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty.-(60) days after the Contract ends.
Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in nonpayment.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees .that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or Federal
taw, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if^the said services have not been
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to the
adjustment of the amounts between budget line (terns and/or State Fiscal Years, related items, and
amendments of related budget exhibits, can be made by written agreement of both parties and do not
required additional approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Haft»r Homes, IrK. Exhibit B-1 Contractor Initials
Amendment #2
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Exhibtt B1, Budgst. Airwndmont #2
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Exhibit B-4, Budget
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Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Kathleen A. Dunn

Associate Commissioner

Mcdicaid Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF MEDICABO BUSINESS AND POLICY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, Nil 03301-3857
"  603-271-9422 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9422

Fax:603-271-8431 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 \«>vw.dhbs.nh.gov

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

May 4. 2015

G&C Approved

Date_

Item #

Requested Action

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care
Services, Bureau of Behavioral Health to amend an existing agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc.
{Vendor #155358), 45 High Street, Nashua, NH 03060, by adding units to the Housing Bridge Subsidy
Program, which provides housing services and subsidies for rent for persons with severe mental illness
who are at risk of becoming homeless, and by increasing the price limitation by $90,833 from
$9,948,020 In an amount not to exceed $10,038,853, with no change to the contract end date of June
30. 2017. The Governor and Executive Council approved the original agreement on October 29. 2014
(Item #16). 100% General Funds.

Funds to support this request are available In the following account In State Fiscal Year 2015,
and anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2016 and State Fiscal Year 2017, upon availability
and continued appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without Governor and Executive
Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-092-920010-59450000-102-500731-92205945 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF

HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Object
Class Title Activity

Code

Current

Budget

Increase /

Decrease

Modified

Budget

2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92205945 $2,123,200 $90,833 $2,214,033

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92205945 $3,612,660 ($1,689,500) $1,923,160

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92205945 $4,212,160 ($2,289,000) $1,923,160

Sub-Total: $9,948,020 ($3,887,667) $6,060,353



Her Excellency. Governor Margaret
and the Honorable Council
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Hassan

05-95-092-920010-59450000-103-502664-92204000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF

HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

Fiscal'

Year

Class/

Object

Class Title Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase /

Decrease

Modified

Budget

2015 103-502664 Contracts for Operational
Services

92204000 $0 $0 $0

2016 103-502664 Contracts for Operational
Services

92204000 $0 $1,689,500 $1,689,500

2017 103-5026B4 Contracts for Operational
Services

92204000 SO $2,289,000 $2,289,000

Sub-Total: $0 $3j978,500 $3,978,500

Grand

Total

$9,948,020 $90,833 $10,038,853

Explanation

The purpose of this amendment Is to provide an additional fifty (50) units to the Housing Bridge
Subsidy Program which is administered by Harbor Homes, Inc. The Housing Bridge Subsidy Program
provides housing services and subsidies or rent for persons with severe mental illness (SMI) who are at
risk of becoming homeless. Over eighty-nine percent (89%) of this funding will provide direct housing
services and rent subsidies to individuals with severe mental illness who are at risk of becoming
homeless, the remaining portion will pay for the administration of the program.

The program was expanded in the State Fiscal Year 2015 budget for the "10 year plan". In
addition, the Community Mental Health Agreement (Amanda D. Settlement) calls for increased
supportive housing opportunities for individuals by increasing capacity to 450 units by the January 2018.
This contract will allow the State to fulfill the requirement and meet other terms of the Agreement, which
read, in part:

(b) a// new supported housing created pursuant to this Settlement Agreement will be scattered-
site supported housing, with no more than two units or 10 percent of the units in a multi-unit
building with 10 or more units, whichever is greater, and no more than two units in any
building with fewer than 10 units known by the State to be occupied by individuals in the
Target Population;

(c) all new support housing created pursuant to this Settlement Agreement will be single
occupancy or single family housing unless the individual prefers to live with a roommate; if
the individual chooses to live with a roommate, there will be a private bedroom for each
person; the individual will be able to select his or her roommate.

The Housing Bridge Subsidy Program is a highly successful program. To date, the program has
provided housing subsidies and supported three hundred and fifteen (315) consumers across the State
of New Hampshire. Early outcome assessments of those participating in the program reflected a
reduction in the use of New Hampshire Hospital bed days of 82%.

The Bureau of Behavioral Health (BBH), in collaboration with New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority (NHHFA), established a cooperative agreement.; The cooperative -agreement establishes
consumers with a severe mental illness who have been admitted to New Hampshire Hospital as a new
priority population to gain access to Section 8/Housing Choice Vouchers.
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Housing Bridge Subsidy Program provides tenant based rental assistance until a Section 8
voucher becomes available for the individual. As the program is modeled after the Section 8 program,
participants are also responsible for paying 30% of their income towards their rent and the Bureau of
Behavi6rarHealth7unds up to $689 per mbhth tb'pfdvlde sufficient fuh~dihg for safe 'affordable hoiisihg.
The rental subsidy is not contingent upon a consumer accepting community mental health services.

The contractor shall work collaboratively with the Bureau of Behavioral Health on a variety of
initiatives designed to sustain a high quality system of services and supports for people with mental
illness including continuous quality improvement activities, safeguarding the rights of people involved in
services, and provision of ongoing staff training.

The original contract was competitively bid. The Department of Health and Human Services
published a Request for Proposals on July 11, 2014, two proposals were received. The proposals were
evaluated by a team of Department of Health and Human Services' employees with knowledge of the
Housing Bridge Subsidy program requirements. The team also included members with significant
business and management expertise. Harbor Homes, Inc. was awarded the contract.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, individuals with
severe mental illness who are homeless and ready for discharge from an institution, or who are
graduating or timing out of transitional housing would either remain in their current and more costly
environments without being able to return to the community of their choice; remain homeless; or become
homeless. People who are without housing and resources will resort to seeking local shelter in places
not fit for habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters In other communities. This will increase the
likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of injury or death, and will be cut off from basic
supports for health, education and treatment.

Area served: Statewide

Source of funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted,

Ke>thlefen~A.'Dunn, MPH
Associate Commissioner

Medicaid Director

Approved by:
Nicholas A. Tou

Commissioner

as

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Amendment #1 to the Harbor Homes Inc. Contract for
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of HealUi and Human Sei^lces

Arne!ndmeht #1to"the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program Contract

This first Amendment to the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program contract (hereinafter referred to as
■Amendment #1") dated this 20th day of Aprii. 2015, is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department^ and
Harbor Homes. Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a piace of
business at 45 High Street, Nashua, New Hampshire 03060.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Councii
on October 29, 2014 (Item #16), the Contractor agreed to perfonn certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules arxl terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Generai Provisions. Paragraph 18 this agreement may be amended only by
an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment by the
Governor and Executive Councii of the State of New Hampshire;

WHEREAS the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend Exhibit A, Scope of Services to include
50 additional units and increase the price limitation of the contract;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

To amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. Generai Provisions. Item 1.8 Price Limitation, to read:

$10,038,853

2. Replace Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2. Scope of Work, paragraph 2.4, with:
The Contractor shall ensure sufficient stafftng to provide housing placement and support services
to a minimum of six hundred and fifty (650) consumers. The Contractor shall ensure:

3. Replace Exhibit A. Scope of Services. Section 4. Requirements of Delivery, paragraph 4.1 with:

4.1 The Contractor shall provide HBSP services to the 240 consumers currently in the
program and increase housing assistance to additional consumers as indicated in the
table, below:

Number of Additional Units Period During which Housing Units
Must be Filled

50 July 1, 2014 - December 31, 2014

100 January 1, 2015 - June 30, 2015

110 July 1, 2015-June 30, 2016

150 July 1,2016-June 30. 2017

4. Replace Exhibit B-1, Budget Period October 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015 with:

- Exhibit B-1 - Amendment#!, Budget Period October 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015.

Harbor Homes, Inc.
Amendment#!

Page 1 of 4



Amendment #1 to the Harbor Homes Inc. Contract for

Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

5; Replace Standard Exhibit G. Certification Regarding the Americans with Disabilities Act
Compliance with;

Exhibit G. Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination.
Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations and Whistleblower protections.

Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this Amendment, the
Agreement, and the obligations of the parties there under, shall remain in full force and effect in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein.

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Amendment #1

Page 2 of 4



m

Amendment #1 to the Harbor Homes Inc. Contract for

Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

This amendrnent shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices

r.Q
Date Kathleen A. Dunn, MPH

Associate Commissioner

Medicaid Director

H a rttof^^mesj^

j \ - •
Name/Title \ct.VV«VviLr, Vrfe.SiCLfl.v\i ̂  OEICiDate

State of " , County of llviiShnnXJOh on M 1^1 1^ . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person idbo^ied above, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the capacity
Indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name end of Notary or Justice of the Peace

SWWE5
•«*E<

Harbor Homes, Inc.

Amendment #1
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Amendment #1 to the Harbor Homes Inc. Contract for

Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this ofnce, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. _ ,

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^ •

b

Date
iiM

Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the l\^eeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Harbor Homes, Inc.
Amendment#!
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Exhibit B-1 • Amondment 01 Budget Period October 1, 2014 'June 30, 2015

177.40a.0019.008.001S8.400.00177.406.001S8.400.00 19.008.00Tccai S4i>»v/w»04»
49.674.00S.322.0044.3S3.005.333.00 49.874.0044 353.003. Emotov** BanaOlt

3. Consunwits

Equipment

RantM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

eiddcrlProgram Name: Harbor Homes Irw.

Bwd0e< Request (on Housing Bridge Subsidy Program (or Consumers with Severe Merdsl Uivass

Budget Pertod: October 1.1014 • June 30, ZOtt I

Repair I I Maintenance

Pufchase<}epredation 8.000.00 980.00 8.960.00

5. SupcAec

Educational

Leo

Pharmacy

Medical

Olftca

Ocojoancv

8. Current Enoonses

3.800.00

35.000.00

1.718.333.00 1.718.333.00 1.933 033.00

Telechone

Posteoe

Subacrlptlona

S18.00 516.00

90.00 838.00

Audit and Leoal

mstnnca

aowd Emensee

6.336.00 714,00 714.00 7.050.00

9. Sottwara

to. Martetino/Communicaaons

11. Staff Education and TrMrinq

13. SubcorwaOs/Aoreemente

13. Offwr fspaoSc datais mandatoiYi:

;:».6a:»-T0TAL-v'Wv.:.s- :''.s1.<78:98t:0e 237,044:001 .Tgu2;ai4;033.00t 1Sft.».1'.878.n9J0Tl\i7yj<'337:O44JI0ilt$.m-;a,214;O33.PO

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 12.0%

H«ree>Heina.l<K.
EdiUb-1
PfSa1W I

C«*KU>HaUr.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COIVIPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDtSCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER-PROTECTIONS -

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlnation requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity:

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnation; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pL 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
Contractor InttiaJs
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex

.agalnst.a.reciplent.of-funds,-the-recipient will forward a copy of-theTmding-to the Office for Clvil Rights,-to •
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: HcXrlOor

Date NameHVaJVeJU
Title; ^ C^O

Exhibit G
Contractor Initials.
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Nicholas A. Toumpas
CommisaioDer

Dians Langley
Dijtctor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED GARE SERVICES

BUREA V OF BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-5007 1 •800-852-3345 Ext 5007

Fax: 603-271-5058 TDD Acoess: 1-800-735-2964

W(/ jljj

Octobers, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based
Care Services, Bureau of Behavioral Health to enter into a retroactive agreement with HartX)r
Homes, Inc. (Vendor # 155358), 45 High Street. Nashua, NH 03060, to administer the Housing
Bridge Sutisidy Program which provides housing services and subsidies for rent for persons
with mental illr^ess who are at risk of becoming homeless in an amount not to exceed
$9,948,020, effective October 1, 2014 upon Governor and Executive Council approval, through
June 30, 2017. /QO

Funds are available In State Fiscal Year 2015, and anticipated to t>e available in State
Rscal Year 2016 and State Fiscal Year 2017, in the following account with the ability to adjust
encumbrances In each of the State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further
approval from the Govemor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05.95.092-920010-59450000-102-500731-92205945 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES,
DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: BEHAVIROAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

SPY Class/Object Class Title Job Number Budget

2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92205945 $2,123,200

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92205945 $3,612,660

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program
Services

92205945 $4,212,160

Total; $9,948,020

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because internal program area discussions created a delay
in sendir>g the contract to the vendor. The purpose of this request is to administer the Housing
Bridge Subsidy Program which provides housing services and rent subsidies for individuals with
mental illness who are at risk of becoming homeless. Of the $9,948,020 available for this
program, $8,882,202 will be used to provide direct housing services and rent subsidies to
individuals will mental illness who are at risk of t)ecoming homeless.

The Housing Bridge Subsidy Program is a highly successful program that provides rental
sut)sidies to individuals with serious mental illness who are homeless or at risk of t>ecomtng
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homeless. To receive the rental subsidies, individuals must be eligible and on the waiting list for
a Section 8 housing voucher.

To date, the program has provided hoCising subsidies and supported three hundred and
fifteen (315) consumers across the State of New Hampshire. Early outcome assessments of
those particlpatir^ in the program reflected a reduction in the use of New Hampshire Hospitai
bed days of 82%.

The Bureau of Behavioral Health (BBH), in collaboration with New Hampshire Housing
Finance^Authority (NHHFA), established a cooperative agreement. The cooperative agreement
establishes consumers with a severe mental illness who have been admitted to New Hampshire

Hospital as a new priority population to gain access to Section 8/Housing Choice Vouchers.

Housing Bridge Sut>sidy Program is available on a statewide basis, and consumers are
given the full opportunity to choose in which community they would like to reside. All consumers
served have a severe mental illness, and are connected with community mental health services
in their local community. These efforts help support the individual in maintaining their apartment,
prevent a further episode of homelessness, and promote the consumer indepeixJence and
pefsonal recovery goals.

Housing Bridge Subsidy Program provides tenant based rental assistance until a Section
8 voucher becomes available for the individual. As the program is modeled after the Section 8
program, participants are also responsible for paying 30% of their Income towards their rent and
Bureau of Behavioral Health funds up to $689 per month to provide sufficient funding for safe
affordable housing. The rental subsidy is not contingent upon a consumer acceptir)g community
mental health services.

The program is monitored through the required submission of monthly, quarterly, and
annual reports regarding its performance arvJ the individuals it serves, and through the
Homeless Management Information data reporting system.

The contractor shall work collat>orativeiy with the Bureau of Behavioral Health on a
variety of initiatives designed to sustain a high quality system of services and supports for
people with mental illness including continuous quality improvement activities, safeguarding the
rights of people Involved in sen/ices, and provision of orrgoing staff training.

This contract was competitively bid. On July 11, 2014 the Department issued a Request
for Proposals for qualified vendors to administer the Housing Bridge Subsidy Program. Housing
Bridge Subsidy Program provides housing services and subsidies for rent In order to 'bridge'
the gap between institutional living and independent living with a permanent rental subsidy such
as Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher or comparable rental subsidy. The request for proposals
was available on the Department of Health and Human Services' website from July 11, 2014
through August 11, 2014. A total of two (2) proposals were submitted.

The proposals were evaluated by a team of six (6) Department of Health and Human
Services employees with knowledge of the Housing Bridge Sub^y program requirements. The
team also included staff with significant business and management expertise. The proposals
were evaluated based on the criteria published in the Request for Proposals. Harljor Homes,
Inc. was selected. The bid summary is attached.

The attached contract calls for the provision of these sen/ices for two years and reserves
the Department's right to renew the agreement for up to two additional years, based upon the
satis^ctbry delivery of services, continued availability of supporting funds, and Governor and
Executive Council approval.
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Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request,
indlvidt^ls wth mental illn.e^s who are homeless and ready for discharge from an institution, or
who are graduating or timing but of transitional housing would either remain In iheir current and
more costly environments without being able to return to the community of their choice; remain
homeless; or become homeless. People who are without housing and resources will resort to
seeking local shelter in places not fit for habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters In other
communities. This will increase the likelihood that homeless people will be in danger of Injury or
death, and will be cut off from basic supports for health, education and treatment.

Area served: Statewide

Source of funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted.

SoGeo

Director

Approved by:

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Departmeni of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Housing Bridge Subsidy Program for
Consumers with Severe Mental Illness

RFP Name

Bidder Name

1.
Harbor Homes, Inc.

2.
NFi North. Inc.

3.

4.

15-0HHS-DCBCS-BBH*02

RFP Number

Pass/Fall

Maximum

Points

235

235

236

235

Reviewer Names

1.
Beth Nichols, BBH, Planning Analyst &
Program Coordinator

2. Dolly Foster. NHH, Assistant Administrator

3.
Patricia Jackson, BHHS, Program Planning
& Review Spedalist

4. Tom Grinley, BBH, Program Planner I

5. Ann Driscoll. BEAS/BBH, Administrator 11

6. Peter Reld, BBH, Administrator



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Housing Bridge Subsidy Proefam

•  agreement

TTie State of New Hampshire and the Contracior hereby mutually agree as follows;
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. roENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name

Department of Health & Human Services
Bureau ofBchavior Health Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant St.

Concord, NH 03301
U CoQlractor Name

Harbor Homes, Inc

1.4 Contractor Address

45 High Sheet
Nashua. NH 03060

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 8820616

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-920010-

59450000-102-500731-

92205945

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2017

1.8 Price Limitation

$9,948,020

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Eric D. Borrin

■I

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-9558

1.11 Cootractoa^ignat 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of . County

On^\\to\mbefore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
perMn wVose name is signed in block I. II, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(Seal]

1.132 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

>2". Fu/LL.O/^^^ Op£<^not^

,  CAROL J. .
\it JUSTICE OF THEMyCofnrTitoionExp>ra8Mareh30.20^g_

1.14 SJatc Agency Signature

1.16 Approval b

By:

1.15 Name and Title ofStafe Agency Signatory

Lr.C.A.
NyR. DcpVr^ent of Administration, Division of PersMoel (Ifoppllcoble) '

Director, On:

1.17 A

By:

rova) by the Atnrow General (Form, Substance and Eiecutlon)

w /11
d EzKutive dpincil i J 71.18 Approval by they Dvemor and Executive (loihcil

By: On:

Page I of4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block l.I ("State**), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 C^Contractor") to perform,

-aftd-the<Jontractor-shall perform,thc-work-or.saleof goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement ("Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACI^EMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations ofthe State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess ofsuch available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
^ving the Contraaor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds .in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are idenlified and more particularly described in
E^bllBrr B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incuned by the Contractor in the
pefformarKe hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Siervices. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
5.3 The Stale reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
(hose liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder. exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and Orders of federal, stale, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rightt and equal opportunity
(aws; In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or ̂ licants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
63 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies ofthe
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Stales Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor IWther agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of (he
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to paform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be propoly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation vrilh whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive tcrminaion of this
Agreement

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more ofthe following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcunder

("Event of Default"):
.&.1.1 .failure lo perforni.th£.Services.satisfactori[y or on . .
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required he rounder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of th'is AgreemenL
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or ell, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence ofa greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspertding all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such lime as the State
determines thai the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Event ofDefault; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.) As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance oC or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether fmished or unfinished.

9.2 All d^ and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the proper^ of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality ofdata shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 'A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the dale of
tcrminaiion,a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any ofIts
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State.lo its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consentof
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior wrincn consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indunnlfy and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, Its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of(or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwitfisianding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity ofthe Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain tn force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage. In amounts
of not less than S2S0,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; end
14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
\42 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use In the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
[4J The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Offica
identified in block i .9, or his or her successor, a certificste(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cenificate($} of
insurance for all renewa](s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (IS) di^sprior to the
expiration date of each ofthe insurance policies. The
ccrttficate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
anached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Page 3 of 4 \V
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certificateCs) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer (o endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
-of-thepolicy. - - -

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor a^ees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂A, Contractor shall
maintain, aixl require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, paymeitt of Workers' Compensation in
connection with aaivities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contraaing Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the manner
described in NX RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein ̂  refaence. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this AgreemenL

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of Us rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default No express
failure to enforce any Event of-Default shall be deemed a
waiver of (he right of (he State to enforce each and all ofthe
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to (he parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument In writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Oovemor and
Executive Council of (he State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
constnied to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreemeot.are.
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this AgreemenL

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of (his Agreement will remain in full force and
effect

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and'supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisioris Applicable to All Services

1.1. For the purpose of this Contract, any reference to days shall be a reference to business
days.

1.2. The Contractor shall provide services to Individuals and families who meet the criteria
for the Housing Bridge Subsidy, statewide.

1.3. The Contractor shaO submit a detailed description of the language assistance senrices
they will provide to persons with Limited English Proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall facilitate enrollment for Individuals eligible for Housing Bridge
Subsidy Program (HBSP) services. The Contractor shall:

2.1.1. Contact the referring agent to schedule a face-to-face meeting with the consumer
and the consumer's support team that may include, but not be limited to, the
consumer's guardian or other involved family member, as appropriate; the
referring agent; a representative from the Bureau of Behavioral Health (BBH);
and an appropriate mental health center representative.

2.1.2. Work with the consumer's support team, listed in Section 2.1.1, to:

2.1.2.1. Assess consumer's immediate temporary housing needs

2.1.2.2. Create an individualized housing plan within five (5) business days
from the date the IniQal referral for sen/Ices Is received. Housing plans
shall include, but not be limited to, supportive services; access to
behavioral health care, as needed; access to psychiatric health care,
as appropriate; and access to primary health care, as appropriate.

2.1.3. Ensure successful acquisition of consumer housing services within fourteen (14)
days of receiving the initial referral. The Contractor shall:

2.1.3.1. Assess consumer housing preferences and housing history.

2.1.3.2. Assist consumers with identifying available hou^ng units in
consumers' communities of choice.

2.1.3.3. Assist consumers with obtaining, completing and submitting housing
applications.

2.1.3.4. Assist consumers with attending housing provider meetings, as
appropriate, which includes, but Is not United to, performing housing
unit inspections; and assisting consumers with Identifying initial rental
needs and resources.

2.1.3.5. Work with the consumer and the consumer's support team identified in
Section 2.1.1, to facilitate papenA^ork needed to verify income and
program eligibility, which includes but is not limited to:

Harbor Homes, irtc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A

2.1.3.5.1 Credit.reports . — _

2.1.3.5.2. Landlord references.

2.1.3.5.3. Criminal background checks.

2.1.3.5.4. Income.

2.1.3.5.5. Asset documentation.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide housing support by assisting eligible consumers with
securing safe and affordable housing in the consumer's community of choice. The
Contractor shall:

2.2.1. Assist consumers with identifying initial rental needs and resources, such as
security deposits, utilities and furniture.

2.2.2. Ensure selected housing meets the U.S. Housing and Urban Development
(HUD), Section 8 requirements.

2.2.3. Use HUD's habitability standards form to complete housing inspections.

2.2.4. Assist consumers with applying for and obtaining benefits for which the
consumer may be eligible^ Including but not limited to, security and utility deposit
assistance, food stamps, SSl/SSDI and Section 8 housing assistance.

2.2.5. Remain In close communication with the consumer for the first ninety (90) days
of the consumer obtaining houshg. The Contractor shall:

2.2.5.1. Revise housing and support services plan, if necessary.

2.2.5.2. Identify resources within the community that can assist consumers,
including but not iimited to, peer support agencies; faith-based groups;
transportation services; primary care services; homemaker/personal
care services; legal aid; and meals-on-wheels.

2.2.5.3. Identify consumers' needs through treatment team meetings; self-
observations; and feedback from landlords and the local mental health
center case managers.

2.3. The Contractor shall administer HBSP sen/Ices, vri^ich includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.1. Findhg housing for current consumers, as descrit)ed in Section 2.2

2.3.2. Reviewing consumers' income every ninety (90) days to calculate the
consumer's 30% portion of rent.

2.3.3. Completing annual inspections of consumers' apartments.

2.3.4. Being the point of contact for landlords

2.3.5. Ensuring timely rental payments to landlords

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure suffident staffing to provide housing placement and
support services to a minimum of six hundred (600) consumers. The Contractor shall
ensure:

2.4.1. All staffing and volunteers undergo NH Criminal background checks.

2.4.2. All staffing and volunteer names are submitted to the Bureau of Adult and Elderly
Services for review against the State Consumer Protective Service Registry.

HartxvHomes. Inc. ErfitoilA Conlfadof Iniltals
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A

■ - 2;5. The-Gontractor- shall. .ensure-all. .complaints-regarding-the—HBSE-services-are-
invesligated by the Complaint Investigator within fifteen (15) days of receiving' the
complaint. The Contractor shal ensure:

2.5.1. Ail parties relevant to the complaint are Interviewed by the Complaint
Investigator.

2.5.2. A determination is made by the Complaint investigator as to whether the
complaint is founded or unfounded.

2.5.3. The complainant Is notified. In writing, of the finding.

2.5.4. Alt Identities of any complainants are kept confidential.

2.5.5. Complainants are aware of the Contractor's process to request an appeal of
findings.

3. Reporting Requirement

3.1. The Contractor shall submit annual performance reports (APR) to the Department as
indicated below. The APR must be in narrative form summarizing the results of project
activities and showing in particular how project activities were performed for the
previous twelve months.

Federal

Fiscal Year

Dates Included

in Report
Due Date

2015 10/1/14-9/30/15 10/15/15

2016 10/1/15-9/30/16 10/17/16

3.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly progress reports to the Department, as indicated
below. Quarterly reports shall inckjde, but not t>e limited to:

3.2.1. The number of participating consumers' assisted during the quarter.

3.2.2. The number of consumers who exted the project during the quarter.

3.2.3. The number of consumers who attained stable housing.

3.2.4. Demographic consumer information.

3.2.5. Barriers experienced by the program

3.2.6. Solutions to avoiding barriers identified.

State Fiscal Dates Included Due Date

Year in Report

2014 10/1/14-12/31/14 1/4/15

2014 1/1/15-3/31/15 4/3/15

2014 4/1/15-6/30/15 . 7/3/15

2015 7/1/15-9/30/15 10/5/15

2015 10/1/15-12/31/15 1/6/16

2015 1/1/16-3/31/16 4/5/16

2015 4/1/16-6/30/16 6/30/16

3.3. The Contractor shall sutxnit monthly progress reports, no later than three (3) business
days after the conclusion of the month, specifying the amount of funds expended and
the balance of funds remaining for HBSP services.

Kartwf Homes, Inc. Exhibit A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Housing Bridge Subsidy Program

Exhibit A

3.4. The -Conlractor. shall-provide- monthly..reporte,.-quarterly, reports.and.APRs-that-afe
based on Section 4, Requirements of Delivery of ̂ rvices.

4. Requirements of Delivery of Services

4.1. The Contractor shall provide HBSP services to the 240 consumers currently In the
program and Increase housing assistance to.additional consumers as Indicate in the
table, below:

Number of Additional Units
Period During which Housing Units

Must be Filled.

60
July 1. 2014- December 31, 2014

50
January 1,2016- June 30,2016

110
July 1,2016-June 30,2016

150
July 1.2016-June 30,2017

4.2. The Contractor sha/f ensure:

4.2.1. Ninety (90) percent of consumers secure housing in their community of choice.

4.2.2. Ninety (90) percent of consumers maintain housing for a minimum of 18 months.

4.2.3. Ninety (90) percent of consumers decrease their hospital utilization to zero over
an 18 month period .

4.2.4. Ninety (90) percent of consumers increase the number of days within the
community over 18 months to at least ninety five (95) percent of the days in the
18 month period.

4.2.5. One hundred (100) percent of consumers are refen^ed to and receive ongoing
community mental health services.

Hartor Homes, Ina ExNbil A
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

This contract is funded with general funds antidpated to be available based upon continued
appropriation, which are conditioned upon continued support of the program by the state arxl federal
govemments. The contractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibit A, Scope of Services In
compliance with funding requirements.

1. Tfie State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation on Form P37, Block
1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. Payment for expenses shall be on a cost reimbursement basis only for actual expenditures.
Expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item budgets shown in Exhibits B-1. B-2
and B>3.

3. Payment for services shall be made as follows:

3.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices for reimbursement of actual expenses Incurred
during the month. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of
receipt of each Invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement

3.2. Invoices identified in Section 3.1 must be submitted to:

Michele Marian

Administrator of Community Mental Health Services
NH Department of Health and Human Services
Bureau of Behavioral Health

105 Pleasant St.

Concord. NH 03301

4. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified In
Exhibit A, Section 3.

5. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than sixty (60) days after the Contract ends.
Failure to submit the invoice, and accompanying documentation could result in nonpayment

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompllance with any State or Federal
law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been
completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement

7. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shail continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

6. Notwithstar>ding paragraph 16 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget and within the price limitation, can be made by written agreement
of both parties ar>d may be made without obtaining approval of the Govemor and Executive Coundl.

Exhibit B Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Lav/s: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibinty determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ail forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fUl out
an application form and that each applicant or re-appficant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on t>ehatf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to inf1uerK:e the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs mcurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to foe contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure foe quality of such service, or at a
rate v^ich exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Firtal
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rales charged by foe Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

ExhibH C - Spe^al Provisions Conuaclor Ird&ais
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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7.3. ...Demand.repayment of. the excess.payment.by-the.Contractor.in which.evBntfaiIure.tomake-.,.....,
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

B. Maintenance of Records: In addttlon to the ellgibUity records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance wHh accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisiUons and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
(n-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
OepartmenL

8.2. Statistical Records: Stalistical. enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including ad forms required to determine eilglbllity for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department wthin 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to aB reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not In any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made urKler the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confldentlality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws ar>d the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their officiai duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhbil C - Special Provisions ConUactor tnfllah.
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Notwithstandjng.anything.to.the.contrary.contained.herein.lhe.covenants.and.conditions.contained.in—
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allov/able expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department

11.2. Final Report: A final report shaO be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
corttain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract arvf upon payment of the price Rmrtatlon
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contmct) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shad disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the nght, at Us discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the fbllowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: AO materials (written, vkfeo, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and aO original n>aterials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any tocilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply v^th ail laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such fadlity. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the tocilities shall
comply with ail rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Stale Office of the Fire Marshal ar»d
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance vrith local building and zoning codes, by-
lavirs and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

M/Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor tnitiais
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more.employees...it.vkrin.matntain.a.currentEEOB.on.file.and^ubniitan£EOP.CeftIf)catiorLEoanJaLthe.
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
vMth fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tnbes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to sutrmit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.o}p.usdo}/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons t%ave
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee WhisUebtower Protections: The
following Shalt apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currentiy, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblowter Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees v/orking on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblovYer protections estabCshed at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause. Including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
fur>ctjon(s). This is accomplished through a written agreemerrt that specifies activities arvl reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the foQowing:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activtUes. before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontradoris
performance is r>ot adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Spodaf Provoions Contractor IniSab
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. Rrovide.to.DHHS.an.annual schedule.identifying.atl.subcontractors,,delegated functions.and.
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identiries deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shan mean those direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal lav/s, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MAf4AG£MENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is

entitled "Rnancial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: if applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the tenns and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrate Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing Stale of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds avaBable for these services.

Exhibit C - Sp«dal Provisions Conlroctor tniUals,-K
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Condrtional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any pro>^sion of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the conb'nuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent char>ges to the appropriation or availability of furxls affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availatxiity of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Sendees, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of the Genera! Provisions, Account Numfa«r, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provbions of this contract. Termination, is amended t)y addir>g the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole disaetion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of eariy
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Agreement for up to two additional years, subject
to continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services, and a^^roval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

Eseubit c-1 - Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certirication;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect io make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant False
certification or violation of the certrficaUon shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or .
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contradors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that tfie unlawful manufocture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ify
Exhibit D - CtftiScation regaRSlng Drug Free Corrtractor Iniliats i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shaij itylude the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.8.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, corisistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amiended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementaUon of paragraphs 1.1,1.2,1.3, 1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection vwth the specific grant. '

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are rrot identified here.

Htxve^ 5-hC'Contractor Name: ^

l/zv/zy ' _
Date NaVhfef

Title: ^

Exhibit 0 - Certification rcflarding Drug Free Contractor IniBals
Workplaca Reqyiramenls f , ,
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTtFiCATiON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identiried in Section t .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sut>-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sut>-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of (his certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including sut>contracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person v/ho falls to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

ContractQuName; VWbof- HcrnfiS, Xnc

U
Date' NaPfie;

Title: TCjOvClttnt- «• Qj^O

Exhibit E - Certiflcation Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials

cunHHS/neris Page 1 of 1 Date

fUU



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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_ CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply vA^th the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foDowing
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below wiD not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shad submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
conskfered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
detennination whether to enter into this transaction. However, ̂iiure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon v4)ich reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction, if it is later detennined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary partidpant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
vrhom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," 'primary covered transaction." "prindpal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the mles implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, dedared ineligible, or voluntarily exduded
from partidpatlon in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary partidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will indude the
dause titled 'Certification Regarding Debamrient, Suspension, Inellgibiiity and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and in all solidtations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A partidpant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective partidpant in a
lov^r tier covered transaction (hat it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily exduded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A partidpant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its prir>cipals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of exduded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require e$tat>lishment pfa.sys^ of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by (his clause. The knowledge and

F - CertiAcation Regarding Oebannenl. Suspension Contractor Initiats t
And Other ResponsibiDty Matters

cuoHHSn 10713 Page lot 2 Dale.



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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information of a participant is not fequired to exceed that which b,npfm9jly.,po?sessed by.a.pjyjcte.Cif—
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authoiized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a iower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a goverrvnentai entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By slgnlr>g and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective tower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and beDef that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is urtable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* svithout modification in all losver tier covered
transactions and in all soficitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: (-^Qrlpcy Jy\.c.

ateDa
Title: I cta.oxT" ^ CiZO
Name?^

Exhibil F - CertJrcation Resarding Dabamient. Susp«rtsk)n Contractor initials,
And Other Responsibility Mailers

CUDHHS/IIOTO

r Responsibility Mailers
ik
/-jj. TV .

Page 2 of 2 Dale



Now Hampshire Dopartmont of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATiON OF COMPLIANCE WiTH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINIHG T0_

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHiSTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscriminatlon requiremente, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) wtiich prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment p>ractices or in
the defivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the cK/D rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits redpients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government senrices, public accommodations, commerdal facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance, it does not irKlude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Polides
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based arxl community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships vrith faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Rscai Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whisttebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blovring activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or mx

Exhibii G - CeiliScatSon Regarding Contractor Initiab
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against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights. Jo
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Date

Contractor Name:, VIgi' MOr^j Xfic

Name: kJetlx-Kflr
Title: 4 Ceo
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